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 Dass Gupta & Associates 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

40-P, Sector-40, Gurgaon (Haryana) Tel.:0124-4084040 E-mail: raaja@dassgupta.in 

 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

To the Members of 

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited 
 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 
Opinion 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India 

Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, the statement of profit 

and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 

flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements, including a summary  of the 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS 

Financial Statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“ the 

Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023,and its profit 

(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 

date. 

 
Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 

of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial 

statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a   basis for our opinion on the 

Ind AS Financial Statements. 

Other Information 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The   other information 

comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but does not include the Ind AS 

Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not 

express               any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

Managements and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the IND AS Financial Statements 
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued) 

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited 
 

Managements and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

(Cont.) 

 

 

that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, (changes in equity) and cash 

flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 

the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 

using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the 

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic        alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 

an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 

basis of these Ind AS Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the  override of internal 

control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are  also responsible 

for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system 

in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  

 



 
 

 

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued) 

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements (Cont.) 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 

the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 

cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Financial Statements, including 

the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions 

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned  scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 
 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. (A)  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive 

income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by 

this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS 

specified under section 133 of the Act; 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 

2023 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified 

as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the 

Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS 

Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 

refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. 

 

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and       to the best 

of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 on its 

financial position in its Ind AS Financial Statements - Refer Note 36.1 to the Ind AS 

Financial Statements. 

 



 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued) 

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited 

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Cont.) 

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting 

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts. The Company 

did not have any derivative contracts during the year. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. (a) The management of the Company has represented that, to the best of its knowledge 

and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 

funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in 

any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 

whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 

any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The management of the Company has represented that, to the best of its knowledge 

and belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), 

including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded 

in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 

the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

v. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the 

company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable. 

vi. The company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the period under audit. 

      

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the remuneration paid / provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

 

      For Dass Gupta & Associates 

      Chartered Accountants 

      (Firm Regn. No. 000112N) 

 

 

 

      (Raaja Jindal) 

       Partner 

       M.No.504111 

       UDIN : 23504111BGVVMJ1673   

 

       

      Place: New Delhi 

      Date : 30th June, 2023 

  

RAAJA 
JINDAL

Digitally signed 
by RAAJA JINDAL 
Date: 2023.06.30 
17:51:43 +05'30'



 
 

 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Ind AS Financial 

Statements of ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited for the year 

ended 31 March 2023 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 

report of even date) 

 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the 

books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that: 

 

i. (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative 

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (“PPE”) and relevant details of right-of-use 

assets.  

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets. 

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which all PPE are 

verified in a phased manner. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable 

having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In our opinion, and according 

to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such 

verification. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties 

(other than properties where the Company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed 

in favor of the lessee) disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements are held in the name of the 

Company. 

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

not revalued its PPE (including Right of Use assets) and intangible assets or both during the year. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending 

against the Company as at 31 March 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami 

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988 as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

(Refer note 56 to the Ind AS Financial Statements) 

 

ii. (a) The Company is in the business of providing loans and does not have any physical inventories. 

Accordingly, the provision  of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to it. 

(b)   During the year, the Company has availed sanctioned working capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 crores 

from Banks or Financial Institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Based on our 

examination of the records of the company, the quarterly returns/ statements filed by the company 

with the said bank, are majorly in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the 

Company. 

 

iii. (a)  Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the provision of clause 

3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to it. 

 

(b) The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC’), registered under provisions of 

RBI Act, 1934. In our  opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant 

of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees, provided during the year are, prima 

facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. 



 
 

 

 

 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Ind AS Financial statements of ORIX 

Leasing & Financial Services India Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued) 

 

(c) The Company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC’), registered under provisions 

of RBI Act, 1934 and rules made thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of 

the said Act/Rules, particularly, the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning 

Norms, monitors repayments of principal and payment of interest by its customers as stipulated. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans 

and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest 

has been stipulated and in cases where repayment of principal and payment of interest is not 

received as stipulated, the cognizance thereof is taken by the Company in course of its periodic 

regulatory reporting. According to the information and explanation made available to us, 

reasonable steps are taken by the Company for recovery thereof. 

(d) The Company, being a NBFC, registered under provisions of RBI Act, 1934 and rules made 

thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of the said Act/Rules, particularly, the 

Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms, monitors and report total 

amount overdue including principal and/or payment of interest by its customers for more than 90 

days. In cases where repayment of principal and payment of interest is not received as stipulated, 

the cognizance thereof is taken by the Company in course of its periodic regulatory reporting. 

According to the information and explanation made available to us, reasonable steps are taken by 

the Company for recovery thereof. 

(e) Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the provision of clause 

3(iii)(e)  of the Order is not applicable to it. 

(f) Based on our audit procedures, according to the information and explanation made available to 

us, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on 

demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. 

 

iv.        According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, 

made investments or provided guarantees in contravention of provisions of Section 185 of the Act. 

The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186(1) of the Act; the other provisions 

of Section 186 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

 

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company being 

a non-banking financial company registered with the Reserve Bank of India, the provisions of 

sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of 

Deposits) Rules, 2014, as amended, with regard to the deposits accepted are not   applicable to the 

Company. We are informed by the Management that no order has been passed by the Company 

Law Board, National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other 

Tribunal on the Company in respect of the aforesaid deposits. 

 

vi. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) 

section 148 of the Act for the business activities carried out by the Company. Accordingly, the 

provision of clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

 



 
 

 

 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements of ORIX 

Leasing & Financial Services India Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued) 

 

vii. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues relating to amounts 

deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods 

and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income- tax, sales-tax, service tax, 

duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues 

applicable to it with the appropriate authorities during the year. 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in 

respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty 

of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a 

period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company did not have dues which have not been deposited as 

on March 31, 2023, except for the following: 

Name of the 
Statute 

Nature of 
dues 

Amount 
(Rs.) 

Period to which the 
amount relates 

Forum where dispute is 
Pending 

Income Tax Act, 

1961 
 

Income Tax 

 
   1,82,11,940  

 

AY 2012-13 
 

Commissioner of Income Tax 

(appeals) Mumbai 
 

Income Tax Act, 

1961 

 

Income Tax 

 

5,63,20,230 AY 2013-14 Deputy Commissioner of 

Income Tax (Mumbai) 

Income Tax Act, 

1961 

 

Income Tax 

 

      89,99,596  

 

AY 2014-15 

 

Assistant Commissioner of 

Income Tax (appeals) Mumbai 

 

Income Tax Act, 

1961 

 

Income Tax 

 

   2,48,13,398  

 

AY 2017-18 

 

Assistant Commissioner of 

Income Tax (appeals) Mumbai 

 

Value Added Tax 

Act 

 

VAT 

 

   3,85,59,650  

 

AY 2012-13 and 

AY 2013-14 

 

Additional/Joint Commissioner 

of Sales Tax, Delhi 

 

Value Added Tax 

Act 

 

VAT 

 

      26,23,111  

 

AY 2011-12 

 

Joint Commissioner of Sales 

Tax, Maharashtra 

 

Value Added Tax 

Act 

 

VAT 

 

      69,61,825  

 

AY 2012-13 

 

Joint Commissioner of Sales 

Tax, Maharashtra 

 

Value Added Tax 

Act 

 

VAT 

 

19,79,842 AY 2018-19 Deputy Commissioner of Sales 

Tax, Maharashtra 

Value Added Tax 

Act 

 

VAT 

 

1,43,19,502 AY 2017-18 Deputy Commissioner of Sales 

Tax, Maharashtra 

Value Added Tax 

Act 

 

VAT 

 

1,66,889 AY 2016-17 Asst. Commissioner Circle G, 

Commercial Taxes  Jaipur 

Rajasthan 

Value Added Tax 

Act 

 

VAT 

 

8,79,543 AY 2017-18 Asst. Commissioner Circle G, 

Commercial Taxes  Jaipur 

Rajasthan 
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Value Added Tax 

Act 

 

VAT 

 

3,56,240 AY 2018-19 Asst. Commissioner Circle G, 

Commercial Taxes  Jaipur 

Rajasthan 

Value Added Tax 

Act 

 

VAT 

 

4,38,08,705 (April 2014 – June 

2017) 

Department of Trade & Taxes 

Government of NCT of Delhi 

Goods & Services 

Tax Act 

 

TRAN-1 ITC 

Reversal 

 

   2,68,48,810  

 

AY 2018-19 

 

Deputy Commissioner of Sales 

Tax, Maharashtra 

 

 

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 

of our examination of the records of the Company, we confirm that we have not come across 

any transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed 

as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

 

ix. (a)  In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings to 

financial institutions, banks, government and dues to debenture holders or in the payment of 

interest thereon to any lender. 

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit 

procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or 

financial institution or government or any government authority or any other lender. 

(c)   In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

utilized the money obtained by way of term loans from bank during the year for the purposes for 

which they were obtained. 

(d)   According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, 

and on an overall examination of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company, we report that 

no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e)   The company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate companies and  

        accordingly this clause is not applicable. 

(f) The company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate companies and 

accordingly this clause is not applicable. 

 

x.  (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company has not raised any moneys raised by way of initial 

public offer / further public offer (including debt instruments) during the current financial year. In 

our opinion, monies raised by the Company by way of term loans were applied for the purposes 

for which those were obtained. 

 

(b)   According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of equity 

shares or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally 

convertible) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(X(b)) is not applicable to the Company. 
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xi. (a)  During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the 

information and explanations given to us, it has come to our knowledge that the company has 

reported frauds amounting to Rs 33.49 Lacs (Refer note 37.25 to notes of the Ind AS Financial 

Statements). 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report under 

sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as 

prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 

Government for the year under audit. However, there are outstanding frauds on the Company 

pertaining to preceding financial years which are reported to the Reserve Bank of India on 

quarterly basis. 

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistleblower complaints received by the company during 

the year while determining the nature, timing, and extent of our audit procedures. 

 

xii.        The Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable 

to the Company. 

 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 

and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the  

Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

 

xiv. (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system 

commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered, during the course of our audit, the reports of the Internal Auditor(s) for the 

period under audit, issued to the Company during the year till date, in determining the nature, 

timing and extent of our audit procedures in accordance with the guidance provided in SA 610 

“Using the work of Internal Auditors”. 

 

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the 

Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with 

its directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence 

provisions of section 192 of the Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

 

xvi. (a)  The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 

1934 and the Company has obtained the required registration. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not conducted any 

Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtaining a valid CoR from the 

Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core Investment 

Company (‘CIC’) as defined under the Regulations by the Reserve Bank of India. 

(d) As per information provided in course of our audit, the Group to which the Company belongs do 

not have any CIC’s as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 

2016. 



 
 

 

 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Ind AS Financial statements of ORIX 

Leasing & Financial Services India Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued) 

 

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the 

immediately preceding financial year. 

 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause 

is not applicable / Paragraph 3(xviii) of the order is not applicable. 

 

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 

ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, 

along with details provided in Note 40 to the Ind AS Financial Statements which describe the 

maturity analysis of assets & liabilities other information accompanying the Ind AS financial 

statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our 

examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which 

causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating 

that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as 

and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 

that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 

reporting is  based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee 

nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 

date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

 

xx. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, there is no unspent amount pertaining to the year under report which 

requires transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with 

second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the said Act. 

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, there is no amount which is remaining unspent under sub section 5 of 

section 135 of the Act pursuant to any ongoing CSR project. 

 

xxi.        Information of qualification remarks is not applicable on the Company as the Company did not 

have any subsidiaries, associate and joint venture.  

 

 

     For Dass Gupta & Associates 

      Chartered Accountants 

      (Firm Regn. No. 000112N) 

 

 

   (Raaja Jindal) 

    Partner 

    M.No.504111 

    UDIN : 23504111BGVVMJ1673 

  

        

    Place: New Delhi 

    Date : 30th June, 2023 

RAAJA 
JINDAL

Digitally signed by 
RAAJA JINDAL 
Date: 2023.06.30 
17:50:32 +05'30'



 
 

 

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the Ind AS Financial 

Statements of ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited for the year 

ended 31 March 2023. 

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements 

under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(Referred to in paragraph 2A(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 

report of even date) 
 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements of ORIX 

Leasing & Financial Services India Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our 

audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 

internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial 

Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 

stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and 

the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 

(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”). 
 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the  Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 

to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by Institute of Chartered 

Accountant of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal                          financial 

controls over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit      of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the 

risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 

internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements, whether 

due to fraud or error. 



 
 

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the Ind AS Financial Statements of ORIX 

Leasing & Financial Services India Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued) 

Auditors’ Responsibility (Continued) 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial 

Statements. 
 

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Ind AS Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS 

Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting include those policies and procedures 

that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS Financial Statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 

company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of  management and directors of the 

company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 

on the Ind AS Financial Statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Ind AS Financial Statements 

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any  evaluation of the internal financial 

controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 

controls over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

 

Opinion  

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 

effectively as at  31 March 2023, based on the internal financial controls over financial reporting criteria  

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

 

 

 For Dass Gupta & Associates 

 Chartered Accountants 

 (Firm Regn. No. 000112N) 

 

 

 

  (Raaja Jindal) 

   Partner 

   M.No.504111 

   UDIN : 23504111BGVVMJ1673 

RAAJA 
JINDAL

Digitally signed 
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  Place: New Delhi 

  Date : 30th June, 2023 

 



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Balance sheet 
as at 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

 As at 
31 March 2023 

 As at 
31 March 2022 

I ASSETS

1 Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 2 4,916                           2,752                           
(b) Bank balances other than (a) above 3 115                              109                              
(c) Trade receivable 4 780                              1,151                           
(d) Loans 5 2,41,882                      2,04,340                      
(e) Other financial assets 6 12,754                         6,420                           

Total financial assets 2,60,447                      2,14,772                      

2 Non-financial assets
(a) Assets held for sale 7 1,455                           1,974                           
(b) Current tax assets (net) 8 3,767                           2,657                           
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 9 8,047                           7,217                           
(d) Property, plant and equipment 10 1,687                           1,609                           
(e) Right-of-use assets 11 309                              375                              
(f) Others intangible assets 12 137                              194                              
(g) Other non-financial assets 13 24,771                         9,192                           

Total non-financial assets 40,173                         23,218                         

TOTAL ASSETS 3,00,620                      2,37,990                      

II LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
1 Financial liabilities

(a) Trade Payables
(i) Trade payables 14
     - Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 1,349                           238                              

      - Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 3,379                           3,507                           
(b) Debt Securities 15 20,395                         20,403                         
(c) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 16 2,03,532                      1,43,889                      
(d) Lease liabilities 17 350                              409                              
(e) Deposits 18 2,065                           1,572                           
(f) Other financial liabilities 19 4,669                           4,146                           

Total Financial liabilities                       2,35,739                       1,74,164 

2 Non-financial liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilities (net) 20 74                                74                                
(b) Provisions 21 382                              358                              
(c ) Other non-financial liabilities 22 193                              166                              

Total non-financial liabilities                               649                               598 

3 Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 23 10,094                         10,094                         
(b) Other equity 24 54,138                         53,134                         

Total Equity                          64,232                          63,228 

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES                       3,00,620                       2,37,990 
Significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Raaja Jindal Sandeep Gambhir Takashi Yamasaki
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No: 504111 (DIN - 00083116) (DIN - 09238975)

New Delhi Vivek Wadhera Meeta Sanghvi
CFO Company Secretary30 June 2023

As per our report of even date attached

Particulars Note

For Dass Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No:  000112N
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Statement of profit and loss 
for the year ended  31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

Note  For the year ended
31 March 2023 

 For the year ended
31 March 2022 

 I  Revenue from operations 
(i) Interest income 25 29,755                         23,058                            
(ii) Fees and commission income 26 1,135                           1,011                              
(iii) Net gain on fair value changes 27 2                                  2                                     
(iv) Sale of services 28 1,604                           1,098                              
Total revenue from operations 32,496                         25,169                            

 II Other Income 29 1,149                           561                                 

 III Total income (I + II) 33,645                         25,730                            

 IV Expenses
(i) Finance costs 30 14,557                         11,800                            
(ii) Impairment on financial instruments 31 8,820                           6,189                              
(iii) Employee benefit expenses 32 4,112                           3,260                              

 (iv) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment  33 884                              896                                 
(v) Other expenses 34 3,415                           2,573                              

Total expenses (IV) 31,788                         24,718                            

 V  Profit before tax (III-IV) 1,857                           1,012                              
VI Tax expenses

(i) Current tax 1,640                           1,261                              

(ii) Tax expenses relating to prior years (33)                              (1,081)                             
(iii) Deferred tax (811)                            (554)                                

 Total Tax expenses 796                              (374)                                

VII  Profit for the year 1,061                           1,386                              

VIII Other Comprehensive Income
A  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

 Remeasurements of post-employement benefit obligation (76)                              (23)                                  
 Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 19                                4                                     
 Others Comprehensive income for the year (57)                              (19)                                  

IX  Total Comprehensive income for the year 1,004                           1,367                              

X Earnings per equity share (Face value ₹ 10 per share) 35
(i) Basic (Rupees) 0.99                             1.35                                
(ii) Diluted (Rupees) 0.99                             1.35                                

Significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Raaja Jindal Sandeep Gambhir Takashi Yamasaki
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No: 504111 (DIN - 00083116) (DIN - 09238975)

New Delhi Vivek Wadhera Meeta Sanghvi
CFO Company Secretary30 June 2023

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Particulars

For Dass Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No:  000112N
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Statement of Changes in Equity (SOCIE)

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

(a) Equity share capital

 As at 31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022

Amount Amount

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 1,00,93,59,010            1,00,93,59,010                

Changes in equity share capital during the year -                               -                                   

Balance at the end of the reporting year 1,00,93,59,010            1,00,93,59,010                

(b) Other equity 

Particulars  Statutory Reserve  Securities premium  Retained earnings 
 Other comprehensive 

income 

Balance at 1 April, 2021 4,479                           30,303                         17,090                             (105)                                 51,767                         

Profit for the year -                               -                               1,386                               (19)                                   1,367                           

Total comprehensive income for the year -                               -                               1,386                               (19)                                   1,367                           

Transfer to Statutory Reserve 277                              -                               (277)                                 -                                   -                               

Balance at 31 March, 2022 4,756                           30,303                         18,199                             (124)                                 53,134                         

Particulars  Statutory Reserve  Securities premium  Retained earnings 
 Other comprehensive 

income 

Balance at 1 April, 2022 4,756                           30,303                         18,199                             (124)                                 53,134                         

Profit for the year -                               -                               1,061                               (57)                                   1,004                           

Total comprehensive income for the year -                               -                               1,061                               (57)                                   1,004                           

Transfer to Statutory Reserve 212                              -                               (212)                                 -                                   -                               

Balance at 31 March, 2023 4,968                           30,303                         19,048                             (181)                                 54,138                         

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Dass Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited
Firm's Registration No: 000112N

Raaja Jindal Sandeep Gambhir Takashi Yamasaki
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No: 504111 (DIN - 00083116) (DIN - 09238975)

New Delhi Vivek Wadhera Meeta Sanghvi
CFO Company Secretary30 June 2023

 Total 

 Total 

Reserves & Surplus

Reserves & Surplus

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Other comprehensive income pertains to acturial gain or loss on employee benefits. The same is part of Retained earnings however disclosed in a separate column
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Cash flow statement 
for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

 For the year 
ended

31 March 2023 

 For the year 
ended

31 March 2022 

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit Before Tax                       1,857                     1,012 
Adjustments 

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment                          884                        896 
(Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment                            (4)                            3 
Provision for gratuity and leave encashment                            55                          73 
Loss allowance ECL                       6,996                     1,216 
Sundry balances written off                             -                              4 
Bad debts                             -                       3,743 
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back                          (98)                        (52)
Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instrument)                     14,529                   11,772 
Interest on lease liability                            28                          28 

Net operating cash flow before working capital changes                     24,247                   18,695 

Adjustments for working capital changes:

(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivable                          371                          43 
(Increase) / Decrease in loans                   (37,445)                   17,265 
(Increase) in other financial assets                     (6,333)                   (2,464)
(Increase) / Decrease in inventories                          519                   (1,883)
(Increase) in other non-financial assets                   (15,578)                   (5,290)
Increase / (Decrease)  in trade payables                          983                        936 
Increase / (Decrease)  in deposits                          493                        224 
Increase / (Decrease)  in other financial liabilities                          523                     1,216 
Increase / (Decrease)  in Provisions                     (7,103)                   (4,959)
Increase / (Decrease)  in other non-financial liabilities                            26                      (481)
Increase / (Decrease) in Loans and advances from related party                        (935)                        214 

Net cash used in operating activities before taxes                   (40,233)                   23,516 

Less: Taxes paid (net of refunds)                     (2,717)                   (2,227)

Cash flows (generated)/used in operating activities -A                   (42,950)                   21,289 

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment                        (963)                   (1,256)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment                          127                        259 
Investment in fixed deposits                            (4)                      (171)
Redemption in fixed deposits                             -                          153 

Net cash used in investing activities-B                        (840)                   (1,015)

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited



Cash flow statement (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

 For the year 
ended

31 March 2023 

 For the year 
ended

31 March 2022 

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from term loan & debt securities                  2,06,702                   97,813 
Repayment of term loan & debt securities                (1,50,623)              (1,09,177)
Increase / (Decrease) in Lease Liability on principal component                          (59)                        254 
Payment of interest expenses                          (28)                        (28)
Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instrument)                   (14,529)                 (11,772)
Increase / (Decrease) in Interest accrued but not due on borrowings                            95                      (106)
Increase in Cash Credit & overdraft facilities                       4,396                     2,759 

Net cash flows generated from financing activities - C                     45,954                 (20,257)

                      2,164                          17 

Cash & cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year                       2,752                     2,735 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer Note 2 (a))                       4,916                     2,752 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Dass Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited
Firm's Registration No:  000112N

Raaja Jindal  Sandeep Gambhir Takashi Yamasaki
Partner  Managing Director Director
Membership No: 504111  (DIN - 00083116) (DIN - 09238975)

New Delhi  Vivek Wadhera Meeta Sanghvi
30 June 2023  CFO Company Secretary

 The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows'. 

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited 

Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash flow from operating activities includes interest received of ₹ 29,755 lakhs  (previous year ₹ 23,058 lakhs) and interest paid of ₹ 
14,556 lakhs (previous year ₹ 11,800 lakhs).
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ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended  31 March 2023 

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated) 
 
 
1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies 
 

1.1 Company Overview  

 
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited ("the Company") incorporated in India on 21 August 
2006, is an Investment and Credit - Non - Banking Financial Company ('NBFC'), as defined under 
section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of ORIX Auto 
Infrastructure Services Limited. ORIX Corporation, Japan is the ultimate holding Company. The 
Company provides financial services such as Finance Leasing of Passenger Cars, instalment loans for 
Commercial Vehicles ("CV") and Loan against Property ("LAP") in India.  
The Company’s registered office is at Plot no.94, Marol Co. op. industrial estate, Andheri-kurla road, 
Andheri (E), Mumbai-400 059, Maharashtra, India. 

 
 
1.2   Statement of compliance and basis of preparation & presentation 

 

(a) Statement of compliance  
 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Indian Accounting 
Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) Rules, 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 
2013 ("the Act”) and relevant amendment rules issued from time to time.  
 
These financial statements were approved by the Company’s Board of Directors and authorised for issue 
on 30 June 2023. 

 
(b)  Basis of preparation 
  

These financial statements have been prepared in Indian Rupee (₹) which is the functional and 
presentation currency of the Company. All amounts are rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless 
otherwise indicated These financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for 
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value or amortised cost at the end of each 
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the 
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. Based on the nature of services rendered to customers and time 
elapsed between deployment of resources and the realisation in cash and cash equivalents of the 
consideration for such services rendered, the Company has considered an operating cycle of 12 months. 
The statement of cash flows have been prepared under indirect method. 
  
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is 
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting 
policy hitherto in use. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended  31 March 2023 

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated) 
 
 
1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued) 

 
The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Profit and Loss are 
presented in the format prescribed under Division III of Schedule III of the Act, as amended from time 
to time, for Non-Banking Financial Companies (‘NBFCs’) that are required to comply with Ind-AS. The 
Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per the requirements of Ind-AS 7 Statement of Cash 
Flows. 
 

1.3 Standards Issued but not Effective Yet 
As at 31 March 2023, there are no standards which are issued but not effective. 

 
1.4  Use of estimates and judgements 
 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement 
principles of IND AS requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These 
estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Application of 
accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective 
judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in the relevant 
disclosures. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes 
in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial 
statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements. 

 
This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, 
and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning 
out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and 
judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for 
each affected line item in the financial statements. 
 
Critical estimates and judgements 
 
The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are: 
 
Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible asset - useful life of PPE 
and Intangible assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period.  
 
Estimation of defined benefit obligation - Key actuarial assumptions including salary escalation rate, 
discount rate, mortality rate, attrition rate. 
 
Recognition of deferred tax assets on availability of future taxable income - availability of future taxable 
profit 
 
Impairment of trade receivables and financial assets - The measurement of impairment losses on loan 
assets and commitments and trade receivables, requires judgement, in estimating the amount and timing 
of future cash flows and recoverability of collateral values while determining the impairment losses and 
assessing a significant increase in credit risk.  
 
 



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended  31 March 2023 

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated) 
 
 

1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued) 
 
The Company’s Expected Credit Loss (ECL) calculation is the output of a model with a number of 
underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements 
of the ECL model that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include: 
- The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk  
- The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis  
-  Development of ECL model, including the various formulae and the choice of inputs  
-  Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive 

the economic inputs into the ECL model  
 

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its model in the context of actual loss experience 
and adjust when necessary. 
 
Consequent to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Indian government announced a lockdown 
in March 2020. Subsequently, the national lockdown was lifted by the government, but regional 
lockdowns continue to be implemented in areas with a significant number of COVID-19 cases.  
The pandemic, including the second wave, continues to have a considerable impact on economic 
activities across the globe and the recovery is likely to be slow and hence the return to normalcy.  
The final impact of the global health pandemic continues to be very uncertain and the actual impact on 
these financial results may be different than that estimated based on the conditions prevailing as at the 
date of approval of these financial statement. The management will continue to closely monitor the 
material changes in the macro-economic factors impacting the operations of the Company. 
 
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

 
 
1.5  Revenue Recognition 
 

The Company earns revenue primarily from providing passenger vehicles on Finance Lease, Finance 
installment loans for Commercial Vehicles and Loan against Property.  
 
Income from operations is recognized on accrual basis. Company is using the IPC Method (Interest, 
Principal and Other Charges for recovery of outstanding amount. 
 
 
Finance lease: 
 
Finance income is apportioned over the period of primary lease at the Internal Rate of Return and in 
respect of Loans. 
In respect of Maintenance Linked Lease ("MLL"), lease rentals are segregated between recovery for 
asset financed and maintenance charges. The Finance income is apportioned over the primary lease at 
Internal Rate of Return Method. The maintenance costs are recognised and accounted for as expenses 
as and when incurred. 
Income arising out of modification in Finance Lease is recognised when the recoverability of the same 
is ascertained. 
Initial Direct Cost which includes incremental employee cost for lease is amortised as expense over the 
lease period.  
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1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued) 
 

 
Loan against hypothecation and Loan against property 
 
Initial direct cost including origination fees, brokerage expenses, is amortised as income/expense on 
effective interest rate basis over the loan period.  
Initial direct cost including incremental employee cost and credit evaluation cost is amortised as expense 
over the lease period.  
Income arising out of delayed payment in Loans is recognised when there is a reasonable certainty of 
realisation. 
 
Operating lease income 
 
Lease income on an operating lease is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term. 

 
Other income 

 
Other Income represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is recognised 
when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract. 

 
1.5  Property, plant and equipment 

 
a. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if 
any. Cost comprises of cost of acquisition, cost of improvements and any directly attributable cost of 
bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use. 
b.  The cost of fixed assets not ready for their intended use at the balance sheet date is disclosed under 
capital work in progress. 
c.    Land and Buildings are taken on a long-term composite lease. The Company has assessed the lease 
of land and building separately and concluded that both of these leases are finance leases in nature. 
d.   Assets given by the Company under operating lease are included in fixed assets. 
e.   PPE is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any 
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference  between the net disposal 
proceeds and the net carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss in 
the year the asset is derecognised. 
f.   Subsequent costs incurred, after the asset is put to use, are generally maintenance costs or other 
statutory costs that do not increase useful life of asset and same are charged in the Statement of profit 
and loss. 
g.  Residual value , estimated useful life and method of depreciation are reviewed every year. Any 
change in these estimates are accounted as change in accounting estimates. 
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1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued) 
 
1.5  Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 
 
1.5.1 Depreciation / Amortisation: 

 
Depreciation / Amortisation has been provided on straight line method at the rates prescribed under part 
“C” of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, except for following assets. The useful life of the asset 
is the period over which the asset is expected to be available for the use to the Company: 

  
Asset Type Useful life 
Furniture and fixtures 4-7 years 
Vehicles 4 years 
Commercial Vehicles under 
Operating Lease 

6 years 

Computer software 6 years 
Furniture, equipment to employees Block of 4 years 

 
a. Depreciation for the month of purchase is calculated in the proportionate period from the date of 

purchase and depreciation for the month of sale is calculated in the proportionate period till the date 
of sale. 

 
b. Fixed assets costing less than ₹ 5,000 are charged to the Statement of profit and loss. 

 
1.6 Intangible assets 

 
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.  
Intangibles are capitalised at cost of acquisition including cost attributable to readying the asset for use. 
Intangible assets are amortised over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line 
basis, from the date that they are available for use.  
Amortisation method and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each financial year end. 
Support and maintenance payable annually are charged to the statement of profit and loss 

 
1.7 Financial instruments 

 
1.7.1 Initial Recognition 

 
The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value 
on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. 
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 
liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss are added to the fair value on initial recognition. 
Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date. 
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1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued) 
 

1.7 Financial instruments (Continued) 
 

1.7.2 De-recognition of financial instruments 
 
The company  derecognizes a financial  asset when  the  contractual  rights  to  the  cash flows  from  the 
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition  under   
lnd AS 109. A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, 
cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the 
consideration paid is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

 
1.7.3 Subsequent measurement 

a. Financial instruments 

i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is 
held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows 
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest the principal amount outstanding. 
 

iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued 
through profit or loss. 
 

iv) Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For 
trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts 
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 
 

v) Off setting 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet 
when, and only when, the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends 
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously 
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1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued) 
 

1.7 Financial instruments (Continued) 

b.  Share Capital 

Ordinary Shares 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new 
ordinary shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. 

 
1.8 Fair value of financial instruments 

 
A number of Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for 
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. In determining the fair value of its financial 
instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions 
and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted 
cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value 
result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized. 
 
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the 
valuation techniques as follows:  

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.  

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly.  

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs) 

 
1.9 Impairment 

 
a. Financial assets 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial 
assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. The Company recognises lifetime expected 
credit losses (ECL) when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition 
and when the financial instrument is credit impaired. If the credit risk on the financial instrument has 
not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that 
financial instrument at an amount equal to 12 month ECL 
 
 The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the 
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition. 
When determining whether credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and 
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both 
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, including on historical experience and forward-
looking information. 
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1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued) 
 
1.9 Impairment (Continued) 

 
For trade receivables, Company measures loss allowances using simplified approach. Stage wise loss rates 
have been imputed from loan portfolio as applicable in each of the other assets to arrive at the estimation of 
impairment for these assets 
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount 
of the assets. 
The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting 
date to the amount that is required to be recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. 

b. Non-financial assets 

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash 
Generating Unit to which the asset belongs. 
If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable 
amount of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a 
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is 
increased to its revised recoverable  amount, provided  that this amount  does not exceed the  carrying  amount  
that  would  have  been  determined   (net  of  any  accumulated  amortization or depreciation)  had no 
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. 
 

1.10 Write off 
 

Loans and trade receivables are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering 
the financial asset. This is the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or 
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A 
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. 
 

1.11 Provisions, Contingent liability and Contingent assets 
 

A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying the economic 
benefits is remote.  
Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a 
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 
When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of 
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 
Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements. 
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1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued) 
 
1.12 Foreign currency transactions 

 
Initial recognition 
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency 
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the 
transaction. 
 
Subsequent measurement 
At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the 
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at the fair value that are denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. The 
difference on translation is charged to the Statement of profit and loss account. 
 
 

1.13 Leases 
 
The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease , as defined under IND AS 116, is based on whether 
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset and the arrangement conveys a right 
to use the asset, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. 
 
Company as a Lessor 
 Leases where the lessor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset are 
classified as finance lease and other leases are classified as operating lease. 
 
Company as a lessee: 
The Company at the commencement of the lease contract recognizes a Right-of-Use (RoU) asset at cost and 
corresponding lease liability, except for leases with term of less than twelve months (short term leases) and 
low-value assets. For these short term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as 
an operating expense.  
 

1.14 Asset retirement obligations (‘ARO’) 
 
ARO is initially measured at the present value of expected cost to settle the obligation and accounted for in 
the books if found material. 

1.15 Retirement and other employee benefits: 

 
Employee benefits include salaries, wages, contribution to provident fund, gratuity, leave encashment 
towards unavailed leave, compensated absence and other terminal benefits 

i. Short term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided at the undiscounted amount of 
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service. A liability is recognised for the amount expected 
to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past 
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 
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1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued) 

1.15    Retirement and other employee benefits: (Continued) 

 
ii. Post-Employment Benefits 
 
Define contribution plans 
 
Company’s contribution paid/payable during the year to provident fund and ESIC is recognised in the 
Statement of profit and loss. 
 
The Company has taken group gratuity- cum -life assurance scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of  India  
for  gratuity  payable  to  the  employees  and incremental  liability  based on  actuarial valuation  as per the 
projected  unit  credit  method  as at the  reporting  date, is charged to  the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
Define benefit plans 
 
The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is defined benefit plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of 
a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in 
return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present 
value. Any unrecognised past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The calculation 
of the Company's obligation under each of the two plans is performed annually by a qualified actuary using 
the projected unit credit method. 
 
The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by 
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, 
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. 
 
The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected 
unit credit method.  When  the  calculation  results  in  a potential asset for  the Company, the recognised 
asset is limited  to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future  refunds from 
the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. 
 
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return  on 
plan assets (excluding interest)  and the effect  of the  asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised 
immediately in Other Comprehensive Income. Net interest  expense (income) on the net defined liability  
(assets) is computed  by applying the  discount  rate, used to  measure the  net  defined liability (asset), to the 
net defined liability  (asset) at the start of the financial year after taking into account any changes as a result 
of contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to 
defined benefit plans are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates 
to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. 
The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement 
occurs. 
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1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued) 
 

Leave encashment 
The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued leave encashment and utilise it in future 
service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the leave encashment do 
not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related 
service and are also not expected to be utilised wholly within  twelve  months  after  the  end  of  such period,  
the  benefit  is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such leave 
encashment in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The 
obligation   is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. 

1.16  Taxation 
 

Income tax expenses represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 
 

Current Tax 
 

Current tax comprises amount of tax payable in respect of the taxable income or loss for the year determined 
in accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961 and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of 
previous years. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
 
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset as the Company has legally enforceable  right to set 
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities. 
 
Deferred Tax 
 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in 
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred 
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally 
recognised for all deductible temporary  differences to  the  extent  that  it  is probable  that  taxable  profits  
will  be  available  against  which  those deductible temporary  differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other 
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit 
nor the accounting profit. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the 
assets to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
 
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflect the tax consequences that would follow  from  
the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the  reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying 
amount  of its assets and liabilities. 
 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset as the Company has legally enforceable  right to set 
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities. 



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended  31 March 2023 

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated) 
 
 

1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued) 

1.16  Taxation (Continued) 
Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit  and loss, except when they relate to items that 
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly  in equity, in which case, the current  and deferred  
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive  income or directly  in equity respectively. 
 

1.17 Segment reporting 

 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision maker. 
 
The board of directors of the Company has appointed a CEO, who assesses the financial performance and 
position of the Company, and makes strategic decisions of allocation of resources. Hence, CEO has been 
identified as being the chief operating decision maker. 
 
Entity shall report separately information about operating segment that meets criteria as per IND AS 108. 

1.18  Assignment 

 
Assigned assets are derecognised only if the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise 
the corresponding pool or mortgages transferred. Transfer of pool or mortgages under the current scenario 
involves transfer of proportionate shares in the pools of mortgages. Such transfers result in de recognition 
only of that proportion of mortgages as to meet the derecognition criteria. The proportion retained by the 
Company continue to be accounted for as loans, as mentioned above. Retained interest on loan assigned is 
recognized upfront in the statement of Profit and Loss Account in the year of assignment. Any changes in 
retained interest in subsequent years due to change in interest rates, prepayments etc are recognized in the 
statement of Profit and Loss Account in the year it occurs. 

1.19  Earnings per share 

 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus 
element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the 
number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 
 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for 
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
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1. Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies (Continued) 

1.20  Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and as imprest, demand deposits with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. 

1.21  Borrowing costs 

 
Borrowing costs (other than those that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 
qualifying assets) are charged to the statement of profit and loss account in the period in which they are 
incurred.  

1.22   Assets held for sale 

Assets held for sale comprising of assets returned by customers and assets repossessed in case of default by 
the client in lending business. The same are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. 

 

1.23 Commitments 

Sanction and disbursement is a continuous activity. There may be few advances which are sanctioned during 
the year however not disbursed / delivered are disclosed as commitments.  

 



Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2023 
 As at 

31 March 2022 

2 Cash and cash equivalents

       Cash on hand                                     4 53                                  

       Balance with banks in current accounts                              4,912 2,699                             
Total                              4,916 2,752                             

3 Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents

Deposit with original maturity of more than 3 months but residual maturity of less than 12 
months*                                 115 109                                
Total                                 115 109                                

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

as at 31 March 2023

*Out of the above bank deposits of  ₹ 10 lakhs have been kept as a security for registration with the VAT authorities of various states.
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As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

4 Trade receivable

11                           33                           

(0)                            (0)                            

-                          -                          

-                          -                          

35                           67                           

(0)                            (0)                            

1,250                      1,168                      

(515)                        (118)                        

780                         1,151                      

Clause (iv) Trade receivable aging schedule

March 31, 2023
Less than 6 

months 6 months  - 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year
More than 3 

years Total
(i) Undisputed Trade reveivables 
- considered good

0                           -                        -                        -                        -                        0                          

-                       

(ii) Undisputed Trade 
reveivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                       

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                       
(iii) Undisputed Trade 
reveivables - credit impaired

-                        -                        -                        -                        5                           5                          

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - 
Considered good 10                         -                        -                        -                        -                        10                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk

35                         -                        -                        -                        -                        35                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - 
credit impaired

52                         142                       320                       731                       -                        1,245                   

Less: Loss allowance for trade 
receivable

(39)                       (49)                       (124)                     (303)                     (515)                     

Total 59                         94                         195                       428                       5                           780                       

March 31, 2022 Less than 6 
months 6 months  - 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year

More than 3 
years Total

(i) Undisputed Trade reveivables 
- considered good

19                        -                       -                       -                       -                       19                        

-                       -                       

(ii) Undisputed Trade 
reveivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk

39                         -                       -                       -                       -                       39                        

-                       
(iii) Undisputed Trade 
reveivables - credit impaired

55                         116                       205                       25                         5                           407                       

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - 
Considered good

14                         -                       -                       -                       -                       14                        

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk

28                        -                       -                       -                       -                       28                        

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - 
credit impaired

61                        123                      460                      118                      762                      

Less: Loss allowance for trade 
receivable

(12)                       (24)                       (66)                       (16)                       (118)                     

Total 205                       215                       598                       127                       5                           1,151                   

There are no debts due by directors or other officers of the Company.
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 to 90 days terms
Unbilled receivables included above are  Nil (Previous year  Nil)

Particulars

Receivables considered good secured 
Less: Loss allowance for trade receivable
Receivables considered good unsecured
Less: Loss allowance for trade receivable
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 
Less: Loss allowance for trade receivable

Receivable credit impaired

Less: Loss allowance for trade receivable

Total 



Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2023 
 As at 

31 March 2022 

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

as at 31 March 2023

5 Loans

Loan against Hypothecation of vehicle                              4,770 10,529                          

Loan against Property                         1,16,487 1,28,486                       

Finance Leases                         1,36,985 75,053                          

Less: Impairment loss allowance                          (16,361) (9,728)                           

Total                         2,41,882 2,04,340                       

*There are no loans measured at FVOCI or FVTPL or designated at FVTPL.

Loans at amortised cost
A
Term loans                         1,21,258 1,39,015                       
Finance Lease                         1,36,985 75,053                          
Gross Total A                         2,58,243 2,14,068                       
Less: Impairment Loss allowance                          (16,361) (9,728)                           
Net Total A                         2,41,882 2,04,340                       

B
Secured by tangible assets                         2,53,679 2,09,120                        
Secured by intangible assets                                    -   -                                 
Covered by Bank/Government Guarantees                              4,564 4,948                             
Unsecured                                    -   -                                 
Gross Total B                         2,58,243 2,14,068                        
Less: Impairment Loss allowance                          (16,361) (9,728)                           
Net Total B                         2,41,882 2,04,340                        

C
Loans in India                         2,58,243 2,14,068                        
Public Sector                                    -   -                                 
Others                                    -   -                                 
Gross Total                         2,58,243                         2,14,068 
Less: Impairment loss allowance                          (16,361) (9,728)                           
Net                         2,41,882                         2,04,340 

Loans outside India                                    -   -                                 
Less: Impairment loss allowance                                    -   -                                 
Net                                    -   -                                 

Net Total C                         2,41,882 2,04,340                        

6 Other financial assets

Security deposits (premises)                                   34 26                                  

Less: Loss Allowance for Security deposits Premises                                   (7) (2)                                  

Sundry Deposits                                     3 3                                    

Retained Interest on Loan Assigned                                 221 502                                

Recoverable from sale of assets                                   12 12                                  

Loans and advances to employees                                   17 14                                  

Out of pocket expenses recoverable                            12,500 5,898                             

Less: Loss Allowance for Out of pocket expenses recoverable                                 (26) (33)                                

Total 12,754                          6,420                            



Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2023 
 As at 

31 March 2022 

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

as at 31 March 2023

7 Assets held for sale

Assets held for sale                              1,455 1,974                            

Total 1,455                            1,974                            

8 Current tax assets (net)

Advance tax (net of provision for tax)                              3,767 2,657                            
(Net of provision for tax of  March 2023 ₹ 16,753 lakhs and March 2022 ₹ 15,146 lakhs)

Total 3,767                            2,657                            

9 Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred Tax Assets (net)                              8,047 7,217                            

Total 8,047                            7,217                            

Out of the repossessed/acquired assets in satisfaction of debt during previous year, assets amounting to ₹ 1,323 lakhs (Loan against 
property), ₹ 12 lakhs (Commercial vehicle loans) are  unsold as on 31st March 2023. Vehicles return back during the year in case of finance 
lease is ₹ 120 lakhs. Such assets have been accounted for as "assets held for sale".
The Company has a loan book consisting of Commercial Vehicle (CV) as well as Loan Against Property (LAP) business. In terms of the 
contracts with the Borrowers (CV as well as LAP), the Company has exercised its legal rights against delinquent borrowers and repossesses 
assets from delinquent borrowers. Assets which were accounted in the books as Assets held for Sale, till 31st March 2022, at net fair value 
(basis external valuation) until they are sold, have been carried in the books as Assets held for Sale till their disposal. The Company , for the 
assets repossessed during the year 2022-23 and onwards, is carrying the loan in the books even post repossession of collateral. 



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

10 Property, Plant & Equipment

Particulars Buildings
Leasehold 

improvements
Furniture and fixtures Vehicles

Data processing 
equipments 

Office equipment
Operating lease -

vehicles
Total

Gross carrying amount

As At April 01, 2021 41                                  77                                  61                                  319                                153                                53                                  3,269                             3,972                             

Additions -                                -                                8                                    177                                15                                  9                                    628                                837                                

Disposals -                                26                                  11                                  161                                19                                  3                                    453                                673                                

As at March 31, 2022 41                                  51                                  59                                  335                                149                                59                                  3,444                             4,136                             

As At April 01, 2022 41                                  51                                  59                                  335                                149                                59                                  3,444                             4,136                             

Additions -                                -                                16                                  178                                59                                  2                                    653                                908                                

Disposals -                                -                                3                                    120                                -                                1                                    259                                382                                

As at March 31, 2023 41                                  51                                  72                                  393                                207                                60                                  3,837                             4,662                             

Accumulated Depreciation / amortization and 
impairment :

As At April 01, 2021 4                                    51                                  35                                  172                                134                                39                                  1,791                             2,226                             

Additions 1                                    5                                    15                                  121                                15                                  10                                  545                                712                                

Disposals -                                 13                                  9                                    150                                16                                  2                                    220                                411                                

As at March 31, 2022 4                                    42                                  41                                  143                                132                                47                                  2,116                             2,527                             

As At April 01, 2022 4                                    42                                  41                                  143                                132                                47                                  2,116                             2,527                             

Additions 1                                    2                                    13                                  113                                17                                  5                                    556                                707                                

Disposals -                                 -                                 1                                    71                                  -                                 1                                    187                                259                                

As at March 31, 2023 5                                    44                                  54                                  186                                149                                52                                  2,485                             2,975                             

Net carrying

As at March 31, 2022 36                                  9                                    18                                  191                                16                                  11                                  1,328                             1,609                             

As at March 31, 2023 36                                  7                                    19                                  207                                59                                  8                                    1,352                             1,687                             

The Company does not possess any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held in the 
name of the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

11 Right of use Assets 

Particulars Right to use Total

Gross carrying amount

As At April 01, 2021 452                                               452                                          

Additions 352                                               352                                          

Disposals 238                                               238                                          

As at March 31, 2022 566                                               566                                          

As At April 01, 2022 566                                               566                                          

Additions 55                                                 55                                            

Disposals -                                                -                                           

As at March 31, 2023 621                                               621                                          

Accumulated Depreciation / amortization and impairment :

As At April 01, 2021 320                                               274                                          

Additions 108                                               108                                          

Disposals 238                                               238                                          

As at March 31, 2022 190                                               190                                          

As At April 01, 2022 190                                               190                                          

Additions 121                                               121                                          

Disposals -                                                -                                           

As at March 31, 2023 311                                               311                                          

Net carrying

As at March 31, 2022 376                                               376                                          

As at March 31, 2023 310                                               310                                          



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

12 Intangible Assets

Particulars Software Total

Gross carrying amount

As At April 01, 2021 443                                               443                                          

Additions 68                                                 68                                            

As at March 31, 2022 511                                               511                                          

As At April 01, 2022 511                                               511                                          

Additions -                                                -                                           

As at March 31, 2023 511                                               511                                          

Accumulated Depreciation / amortization and impairment :

As At April 01, 2021 240                                               240                                          

Additions 77                                                 77                                            

As at March 31, 2022 317                                               317                                          

As At April 01, 2022 317                                               317                                          

Additions 56                                                 56                                            

As at March 31, 2023 373                                               373                                          

Net carrying

As at March 31, 2022                                                194                                           194 

As at March 31, 2023                                                138                                           138 
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

as at 31 March 2023

13 Other non-financial assets

Prepaid Expenses                                 957 494                               
Balance with government authorities

 - Vat credit receivable                                   61 61                                 

 - GST credit receivable                            23,178 7,821                            

 - Sales tax refund                                   25 56                                 

Advances to suppliers of goods and services                                 545 760                               

Advances towards assets                                     5 0                                   

Total 24,771                          9,192                            



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

 As at 
31 March 2023 

 As at 
31 March 2022 

14 Trade payables

1,349                   238                      

3,379                   3,507                   

Total 4,728                   3,745                   

No Due <1  year 1-2 year 2-3 year
More than 3 

years 
(i)MSME 758                      578                      1                          1                          11                        1,349                   
(ii)Others 1,255                   1,521                   209                      17                        377                      3,379                   
(iii) Disputed -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
dues – MSME -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
(iv) Disputed -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
dues - Others -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Grand total 2,013                   2,099                   210                      18                        388                      4,728                   

No Due <1  year 1-2 year 2-3 year
More than 3 

years 
(i)MSME 78                        54                        16                        10                        80                        238                      
(ii)Others 1,320                   1,673                   21                        159                      334                      3,507                   
(iii) Disputed -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
dues – MSME -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
(iv) Disputed -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
dues - Others -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Grand total 1,398                   1,727                   37                        169                      414                      3,745                   

Total

TotalMarch 31, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from
due date of  payment#

Particulars

Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprises 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro and Small Enterprises 

March 31, 2023

Outstanding for following periods from
due date of  payment#
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

as at 31 March 2023

15 Debt Securities

Non-convertible unsecured debentures                            20,395 20,403                          

Total 20,395                          20,403                          

Debenture                            20,395 20,403                          
(7.40 % rated, unlisted, unsecured, non-convertible debenture with bullet payment 
maturing on 18th December 2023)

Total (A)                            20,395                            20,403 

Debt securities in India                            20,395 20,403                          
Debt securities outside India                                    -                                      -   

Total (B) to tally with (A)                            20,395                            20,403 

Secured                                    -                                      -   
Unsecured                            20,395 20,403                          

Total (C) to tally with (A)                            20,395                            20,403 

16 Borrowings (Other than debt securities)

Term Loan

 - From banks                         1,75,659 1,18,534                       
 - ECB borrowing from parent company                            20,190 21,134                          
Cash credits                              3,983 3,004                            

Overdraft facilities                              3,418 (0)                                  

Loans and advances from related party                                 282 1,217                            

Total 2,03,532                       1,43,889                       

 At Amortised Cost 
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

as at 31 March 2023

16 Borrowings (Other than debt securities) (Continued)

(a)Term loans
(i)from banks                         1,75,659 1,18,535                       
(ii)from parent company                            20,190 21,134                          

(b)Loans from related parties                                 282 1,217                            
(c)Loans repayable on demand

  (i) from banks                              7,401 3,004                            
(d) Other loans-Interest accrued but not due on borrowings                                    -   -                                

Total (A)                         2,03,532 1,43,890                       

Borrowings in India                         1,83,342 1,22,756                       
Borrowings outside India                            20,190 21,134                          

Total (B) to tally with (A)                         2,03,532 1,43,889                       

Secured                              3,983 3,004                            
Unsecured                         1,99,549 1,40,886                       

Total (C) to tally with (A)                         2,03,532 1,43,890                       

Borrowing is secured by floating charge by way of Hypothecation of the following assets as per the drawing power:
   a. Receivables under Lease & Hire-Purchase with hypothecated assets.
   b. Receivables of loans extended by the company to different borrowers with beneficial interest on hypothecated assets.
   c. Unencumbered own assets.
Borrowings is not guaranteed by Directors.
Borrowings are secured by corporate guarantee provided by ultimate holding company.
There are no borrowings measured at FVTPL or designated at FVTPL.
For Term of repayment refer schedule no 51 - Repayment schedule of long term borrowing.
The Company has not default in repayment of borrowings and interest as on the balance sheet date.

17 Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities (refer note 44)                                 350 409                               

Total                                 350 409                               

18 Deposits

Security deposits from lessees                              2,065 1,572                            

Total                              2,065 1,572                            

19 Other financial liabilities

Other Payables to Employees                                 462 250                               

Payable in respect of loans assigned                                 155 355                               

Provision for expenses                                 493 366                               
Advance from customers                              3,559 3,175                            

Total 4,669                            4,146                            

20 Current tax liabilities (Net)

Provision for income tax (net of advance tax)                                   74 74                                 
(Net of advance tax for March 2023 ₹ 3,301 lakhs and  March 2022 ₹ 3,301 lakhs)

Total 74                                 74                                 

 At Amortised Cost 
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as at 31 March 2023

21 Provisions
Provision for employees' benefits
- Provision for Compensated absences                                 209 161                               

- Provision for Gratuity                                 144 137                               

Other Provisions                                   29 60                                 

Total 382                               358                               

22 Other non-financial liabilities

Statutory remittances (Contributions to PF, GST, TDS, etc.)                                 193 166                               

Total 193                               166                               

23 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
15,00,000,00 equity shares of ₹ 10 each              1,50,00,00,000 1,50,00,00,000             
Issued 
100,935,901  equity shares of  ₹ 10 each fully paid up              1,00,93,59,010 1,00,93,59,010             

Total 1,00,93,59,010             1,00,93,59,010             

24 Other equity

Statutory Reserve
Opening balance                              4,756 4,479                            
Add : Additions during the year                                 212 277                               
Balance at the end of the year                              4,968 4,756                            

Securities premium account                            30,303 30,303                          

Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year                            18,199 17,090                          
Profit for the year                              1,061 1,386                            
Less: Transfer to statutory reserve                                 212 277                               
Balance at the end of the year                            19,048 18,199                          

Other Comprehensive Income :
Balance at the beginning of the year                               (124) (105)                              
Transactions during the year                                 (57) (19)                                
Balance at the end of the year                               (181) (124)                              
     

Total 54,138                          53,134                          

iv) Other comprehensive income represent actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans, net of taxes.

iii) Retained earnings or accumulated surplus represents total of all profits retained since Company’s inception. Retained earnings are
credited with current year profits, reduced by losses, if any, transfers to General reserve or any such other appropriations to specific reserves. 

i) Securities premium is used for recording the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of
section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.
ii) Statutory reserve represents reserve fund created pursuant to Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934 through transfer of specified percentage
of net profit every year before any dividend is declared. The reserve fund can be utilised only for limited purposes as specified by RBI from
time to time and every such utilisation shall be reported to the RBI within specified period of time from the date of such utilisation.

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium: The Company, as part of its normal business, grants loans and advances, makes 
investment and accept security deposits and borrowings from its customers, other entities and persons. These transactions are part of 
Company’s normal non-banking finance business, which is conducted ensuring adherence to all regulatory requirements.

Other than the transactions described above, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party 
identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has also not received any fund from any parties (Funding 
Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by 
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries.
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
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(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

PARTICUALRS  For the year ended
31 March 2023 

 For the year ended
31 March 2022 

25 Interest income

Interest on loans 29,712                         23,021                         
Penal interest income 43                                37                                

Total 29,755                         23,058                         

On Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost

Interest on loans 29,712                          23,021                          
Penal interest income 43                                 37                                 

Total 29,755                          23,058                          

26 Fees and commission income

Origination and processing fees 112                               30                                 
Income on pre termination of lease & hypothecation 457                               427                               
Other fee income 566                               554                               

Total 1,135                           1,011                            

27 Net gain on fair value changes

Securities-Premises 2                                   2                                  

Total 2                                  2                                  

28 Sales of services

Fleet management services 1,088                           473                              
Lease rental on operating lease 516                              625                              

Total 1,604                           1,098                            

29 Other income

Discount received from dealers 334                              203                              
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back 98                                52                                
Bad debts recovered 395                              74                                
Interst on loan to staff 2                                  1                                  
Interest income of bank deposit 5                                  4                                  
Interest on VAT/CST tax refund 10                                -                               
Miscellaneous income 305                              227                              

Total 1,149                           561                              
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PARTICUALRS  For the year ended
31 March 2023 

 For the year ended
31 March 2022 

30 Finance Cost

Interest 14,219                         11,485                         
Other borrowing costs 310                              287                              
Interest on lease liability 28                                28                                

Total 14,557                         11,800                         

Interest on borrowings 12,739                         10,005                         
Interest on debt securities 1,480                           1,480                           
Other interest expense 338                              314                              
Total 14,557                         11,800                         

31 Impairment on financial instruments

Loss allowance expected credit loss 6,996                           1,216                           
Bad debts -                               3,743                           
Loss on termination and foreclosure of loans 1,824                           1,230                           

Total 8,820                           6,189                           

32 Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages 3,757                           2,970                           
Contribution to provident and other funds 286                              243                              
Staff welfare expenses 69                                47                                

Total 4,112                           3,260                           

33 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment 707                              711                              
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets 121                              108                              
Amortization on Intangible fixed assets 56                                77                                

Total 884                              896                              

34 Other expenses

Power and fuel 89                                54                                
Rent 189                              190                              
Repairs and maintenance 88                                73                                
Insurance 1,017                           511                              
Rates and taxes 268                              231                              
Sub-contract charges 77                                92                                
Communication expenses 36                                27                                
Legal and professional fees 414                              380                              
Corporate social responsibility expense (Refer note (i) below) 104                              136                              
Computer maintenance and Software 142                              112                              
Travelling and conveyance 190                              60                                
Director's sitting fees 8                                  9                                  
Payments to Auditors (Refer note (ii) below) 18                                15                                
Sundry balances written off -                               4                                  
Management fees 538                              538                              
Miscellaneous expenses 237                              141                              

Total 3,415                           2,573                           

On Financial liability measured at Amortised Cost
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PARTICUALRS  For the year ended
31 March 2023 

 For the year ended
31 March 2022 

34 Other expenses (Continued)

Notes :
i) Details of Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure (CSR) :

 For the year ended
31 March 2023 

 For the year ended
31 March 2022 

a) Gross amount required to be spent by Company during the year 104                               136                               
b) Amount approved by the Board to be spend during the year 104                               136                               

c)  Amount spent during the year ending on 31st March 2023 : In Cash Total
1.  Construction/acquisition of any asset -                                -                                
2.  On  purposes  other  than  (1) above 104                               104                               
3.  Details of related party transaction -                                -                                
Total 104                               104                               

d)  Amount spent during the year ending on 31st March 2022 : In Cash Total
1.  Construction/acquisition of any asset -                                -                                
2.  On  purposes  other  than  (1) above 136                               136                               
3.  Details of related party transaction -                                -                                
Total 136                               136                               

e) Details realted to spent/unspent obligations:  For the year ended
31 March 2023 

 For the year ended
31 March 2022 

1  Contribution to Public Trust -                                -                                
2  Contribution to Charitable Trust 104                               136                               

ii) Payment to Auditors:
Statutory audit fees 10                                 9                                   
Certification fees 2                                   2                                   
Professional fees 6                                   4                                   
Total 18                                 15                                 

35 Earnings per equity share

Profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders                                             (A) 1,004                            1,367                            

Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the  year 10,09,35,901               10,09,35,901               
Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 10,09,35,901               10,09,35,901               
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year   (B) 10,09,35,901               10,09,35,901               

Basic and diluted earnings per share (₹)                                                        (A / B) 0.99                             1.35                             
Face value per share (₹) 10.00                           10.00                           
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

23.1 Share capital :

Number Amount Number Amount

15,00,00,000              1,50,00,00,000           15,00,00,000              1,50,00,00,000           

-                              -                              -                              -                              

10,09,35,901              1,00,93,59,010           10,09,35,901              1,00,93,59,010           

10,09,35,901              1,00,93,59,010           10,09,35,901              1,00,93,59,010           

10,09,35,901              1,00,93,59,010           10,09,35,901              1,00,93,59,010           

a. Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Number Amount Number Amount

10,09,35,901              1,00,93,59,010           10,09,35,901              1,00,93,59,010           

-                              -                              -                              -                              

10,09,35,901              1,00,93,59,010           10,09,35,901              1,00,93,59,010           

b.

c.

d.

No of shares held % of holding No of shares held % of holding

ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited and its nominees 10,09,35,901              100% 10,09,35,901              100%

e. Details of shares held by promoters

No of shares held  % changes during 
the year 

No of shares held  % changes during 
the year 

ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited (OAIS) 10,09,35,831              0% 10,09,35,831              0%

Manmohan Malik and OAIS 10                               0% 10                               0%

Pankaj Jain and OAIS 10                               0% 10                               0%

Jay Gandhi and OAIS 20                               0% 20                               0%

Vivek Wadhera and OAIS 10                               0% 10                               0%

Sandeep Gambhir and OAIS 10                               0% 10                               0%

Dipankar Sen and OAIS 10                               0% 10                               0%

Total 10,09,35,901              0% 10,09,35,901              0%

 As at  31 March  2023  As at  31 March  2022 

Authorised

Subscribed & fully paid up

Issued

Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each

Total

Equity Shares of  ₹ 10 each

13.5% preference shares of ₹ 10 each

Name of Shareholder

Shareholder's name

                As at  31 March  2023

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

As at  31 March  2022

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share.

10,09,35,901 (P.Y. 10,09,35,901) Equity Shares are held by ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited, the holding company and its
nominees.

As at  31 March  2023

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company/ shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and its nominees:

Particulars

Equity Shares of  ₹ 10 each

As at  31 March  2023 As at  31 March  2022

Particulars

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

Shares issued during the year

Shares outstanding at the end of the year

                As at  31 March  2022
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(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

36.1

 i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

Particulars  31 March 2023  31 March 2022  31 March 2016

Income tax                                 1,083                                 1,083             18,37,11,340 
Sales tax                                 1,357                                    913               4,61,22,931 
Litigation pending against the company                                      46                                      43                  29,56,439 

Total                                 2,486                                 2,039             23,27,90,710 

The Company believes it is most likely to succeed in the above cases and hence no provision is considered necessary.

 ii) Commitments: 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for :                                      

Particulars  31 March 2023  31 March 2022  31 March 2016

Loan and lease commitments                               14,010                               10,603               1,13,17,488 

36.2 Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

 31 March 2023  31 March 2022

                                1,349                                    238 

                                      -                                         -   

                                      -                                         -   

                                      -                                         -   

                                      -                                         -   

                                      -                                         -   

                                      -                                         -   

                                      -                                         -   

Particulars

a) Principal amount due and remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the year end

b) Interest accrued and due to suppliers on the above amount as at the year end

c) Interest paid to suppliers in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act 

d) Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day, during the year

e) Interest paid to suppliers (other than Section 16 of the MSMED Act) 

Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for):

Based on and to the extent of the information received by the Company from the suppliers during the year regarding their status under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) and relied upon by the auditors, there are outstanding amounts
due to MSME as at  31 March 2022 and as at  31 March 2023.

f) Interest due and payable to suppliers for payments already made (for the period of delay, if any)

g) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end 

h) Further interest due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest due as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprises
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36.3

Amount in original 
currency

Amount in INR Amount in original 
currency

Amount in INR

                                    1                                      54                                        1                                      70 

                                    0                                      16                                        0                                      15 

36.4

36.5

36.6

36.7

36.8 Value zero represent amount less than fifty thousand.

With regard to the new amendments under "Division III of Schedule III" under "Part II - Statement of Profit and Loss - General Instructions 
for preparation of Statement of Profit and loss" there are no transactions that are required to be disclosed with regard to the following clauses 
11 (v) and 11 (vii) for the Company.

Particulars  31 March 2023

Amount payable for 
commitment fees 

The Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to confirm to current year presentation.

Foreign currency exposures not hedged by derivative instruments are as follows:

There has been no other events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statement.

The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the
Company has reviewed and ensured that no material provision as required under any law / accounting standards for material foreseeable
losses on such long term contracts is required to be made in the books of accounts. The Comapny did not enter into any derivative transactions
during the year. 

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (the Code) has been enacted, which would impact contribution by the Company towards Provident Fund
and Gratuity. The effective date from which changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the rules thereunder are yet to be announced. The
actual impact on account of this change will be evaluated and accounted for when notification becomes effective.

 31 March 2022

Amount payable for bank 
guarantee fees (USD)



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

37

37.1 Capital :

 31 March 
2023

 31 March 
2022

20.54% 24.35%

0.62% 1.24%

21.16% 25.59%

37.2 Asset Liability Management Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities :
As at 31 March 2023

Particulars  Deposits  Advances  Investments  Borrowings  Foreign 
Currency 

assets 

 Foreign 
Currency 
liabilities 

1 to 7 days                      -                  5,626                      -                     301                      -                        -   

8 to 14 days                      -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -   

15 to 30/31 days                      -                11,471                      -                21,363                      -                        -   

Over 1 Month Upto 2 Month                      -                  3,685                      -   15,333                                 -                        -   

Over 2 Month Upto 3 Month                      -                  3,675                      -   11,442                                 -                        -   

Over 3 Month Upto 6 Month                      -                11,928                      -   10,607                                 -                        -   

Over 6 Month Upto 1 Year                      -                23,560                      -   36,228                                 -                        -   

 Over 1 YearUpto 3 Year                      -                74,142                      -   1,23,028                              -                        -   

 Over 3 YearUpto 5 Year                      -                26,062                      -   5,625                                   -                        -   

Over 5 Year                      -                81,733                      -                        -                        -                        -   

Total                      -            2,41,882                      -            2,23,927                      -                        -   

As at 31 March 2022

Particulars  Deposits  Advances  Investments  Borrowings  Foreign 
Currency 

assets 

 Foreign 
Currency 
liabilities 

1 to 7 days                      -                  4,048                      -                     179                      -                        -   

8 to 14 days                      -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -   

15 to 30/31 days                      -                  8,652                      -   11,857                                 -                        -   

Over 1 Month Upto 2 Month                      -                  2,393                      -   8,756                                   -                        -   

Over 2 Month Upto 3 Month                      -                  2,464                      -   3,022                                   -                        -   

Over 3 Month Upto 6 Month                      -                  8,006                      -   18,560                                 -                        -   

Over 6 Month Upto 1 Year                      -                16,069                      -   41,702                                 -                        -   

 Over 1 YearUpto 3 Year                      -                51,151                      -   66,467                                 -                        -   

 Over 3 YearUpto 5 Year                      -                20,859                      -   13,750                                 -                        -   

Over 5 Year                      -                90,698                      -                        -                        -                        -   

Total                      -            2,04,340                      -            1,64,293                      -                        -   

Maturity pattern is as per contractual cash flow and management estimate of recovering/paying advances/borrowing

The Company is subject to the capital adequacy requirements of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Under RBI’s capital adequacy guidelines, the Company is
required to maintain a capital adequacy ratio consisting of Tier I and Tier II Capital. The total of Tier II Capital at any point of time, shall not exceed 100
percent of Tier I Capital. The minimum capital ratio as prescribed by RBI guidelines and applicable to the Company, consisting of Tier I and Tier II capital,
shall not be less than 15 percent of its aggregate risk weighted assets on-balance sheet and of risk adjusted value of off-balance sheet.

The Company has complied with all regulatory requirements related to capital and capital adequacy ratios as prescribed by RBI, details of which are given
below :-

Particulars

Total capital

 i)  Tier I capital (%)

 ii) Tier II capital (%)

These disclosures are made pursuant to Reserve Bank of India Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 
September 01, 2016 (as amended), to the extent applicable to the Company.
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37.3 Exposure to Real Estate Sector :

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

This includes exposure to parties having business activities of real estate/ infrastructure.

37.4 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SBL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC :

37.5 Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year : 

Particulars
Current 
Rating

Previous 
Rating

Long Term IND AAA IND AAA

Short Term IND A1+ IND A1+

37.6 Provisions and Contingencies :

                  397                   -13 

                    48                      -4 

                  743                   304 

37.7 Concentration of Advances :

All advances are secured by underlying assets

37.8 Concentration of Exposures :

 31 March 2023

Direct Exposure

(MBS) and other securitised exposures -

a. Residential

 31 March 2022

Total                                     1,28,486 

Category  31 March 2022

                                       39,352                                        34,958 

                                       89,134 

Commercial Real Estate - 
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, 
retail space, multi- purpose commercial premises, multi-family residential 
buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse 
space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.). Exposure 
would also include non-fund based limits

                                       80,253 

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in 
Profit and Loss Account

Provision for other financial assets and other provisions                                                43 

Provision for standard assets (stage one and two)                                              518 

Provision towards non performing assets (stage three)                                              622 

Provision made towards Income tax                                            -374 

                                          8,302 

                                             796 

                                             -34 

                                        -1,670 

Provision for leave encashment

Provision for bonus

Provision for trade receivable

Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the 
Company

14%

Particulars  31 March 2022

Particulars  31 March 2022

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers                                        30,048 

 31 March 2023

                                       56,020 

22%

 31 March 2023

Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers                                        30,048 

Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure 
of the Company on borrowers / customers

14%

                                       56,020 

22%

The Company has not exceeded the Prudential Exposure Limits for any Single/ Group Borrower.

                                    1,15,211 

 31 March 2023

These disclosures are made pursuant to Reserve Bank of India Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 
September 01, 2016 (as amended), to the extent applicable to the Company. (Continued)

Residential Mortgages - 
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be 
occupied by the borrower or that is rented

b. Commercial Real Estate

Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities

The Company has received revised rating on 27 December 2022 from India Ratings & Research (Fitch group) Ltd as follows :
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37.9 Concentration of non performing assets :

37.10 Sector-wise non performing assets :

Sl. 
No.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

37.11 Movement of non performing assets :

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

37.12 Disclosure of  Customers Complaints :

a

b

c

d

37.13 Details of Off Balance Sheet Assets :

37.14 Encumbrances of fixed deposits held by Company :

37.15 Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

The Company is not registered with any other financial sector regulator.

The Company has lien marked fixed deposits with Bank amounting to ₹ 112 (P.Y.₹ 108) for obtaining guarantees as mentioned in note no 37.13.

Particulars  31 March 2022

Total exposure to top four non performing assets accounts                                           1,533 

 31 March 2023

                                          1,552 

Unsecured personal loans

Auto loans

Other personal loans

MSME

Corporate borrowers

Services

Sector

 31 March 2022

Agriculture & allied activities                                                 -   

96.46%

-

 31 March 2023

                                                -   

21.52%

2.42%

                                                -   

                                                -   

94.53%

-

Percentage of gross NPAs to net advances in that sector

Movement of non performing assets (Gross)

 a) Opening balance 26,055                                       

Particulars  31 March 2022

Net non performing assets to Net Advances (%) 7.28%

 31 March 2023

20,796                                       

5.84%

 d) Closing balance 20,796                                       

Movement of net non performing assets

 a) Opening balance 21,054                                       

 b) Additions during the year 8,663                                         

 c) Reductions during the year (13,922)                                     

13,715                                       

(6,316)                                       

28,195                                       

15,177                                       

 b) Additions during the year 5,002                                         

 c) Reductions during the year (10,880)                                     

14,275                                       

5,619                                         

4,083                                         

(4,984)                                       

No. of complaints received during the year

No. of complaints redressed during the year                                                33 

 d) Closing balance 15,176                                       

Movement of provisions for non performing assets (excluding provisions on 
standard assets)
 a) Opening balance 5,000                                         

12.27%

3.18%

                                                -   

                                                -   

These disclosures are made pursuant to Reserve Bank of India Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 
September 01, 2016 (as amended), to the extent applicable to the Company. (Continued)

No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

 b) Provisions made during the year 3,661                                         

The Company has provided bank guarantees amounting to ₹ 10 (P.Y.₹ 10)  to various VAT authorities.

                                                 1 

No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year                                                 -                                                    1 

                                             131 

                                             132 

                                                -   

 c) Write-back of excess provisions (3,042)                                       

9,631                                         

(1,331)                                       

13,919                                        d) Closing balance 5,619                                         

Particulars  31 March 2022 31 March 2023

                                               34 
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37.16 Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators

RBI and other regulator has not imposed any penalties on the Company during current and previous year.

37.17 Financing of parent company product

The Company has not financed any parent company product during current and previous year.

37.18 Investments

The Company has not made any investments during current and previous year.

37.19 Derivative

The Company has not entered into any derivative transaction during current and previous year.

37.20 Securitisation

The Company has not entered into any securitisation or assignment transaction during current year and previous year.

37.21 Purchasing or selling of Non Performing assets

The Company has not purchased or sold any non performing financial asset during current and previous year.

37.22 Exposure to capital market

The Company does not have any exposure to capital market during current and previous year.

37.23 Overseas assets

The Company does not have any overseas assets during current and previous year.

37.24 Off Balance Sheet SPVs

The Company does not have any off Balance Sheet SPVs during current and previous year.

37.25 Details of Fraud :

During the year, the Company has reported frauds ₹ 33.49 (Previous year : ₹ Nil) based on management reporting to risk committee and to the RBI
through prescribed returns.

These disclosures are made pursuant to Reserve Bank of India Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 
September 01, 2016 (as amended), to the extent applicable to the Company. (Continued)
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38 As per Ind As 24 - Related parties

(A) Name of related parties by whom control is exercised

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

99.9999% 99.9999%

0.00% 0.00%

0.00% 0.00%

0.00% 0.00%

(B) Key management personnel

Yoshiaki Matsuoka - Director
Takashi Yamasaki - Director
Shin Hamada - Director     (upto 09 August 2022)
Takehiro Onishi - Director
Sandeep Gambhir - Managing Director
Shingen Matsuo - Director     (from 09 August 2022) 
Ryohei Suzuki - Director
Vivek Wadhera - CFO
Abhay Kakkar - Director
Nagesh Dubey - Director
Gouri Sawant - Director
Meeta Sanghvi - Company Secretary

Details of related party transaction during the year are given below:

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

Management Charges          538                538                  -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   538        538         

Interest Expenses          110                  80                  -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   110        80           

Interest Expenses on ECB            -                     -              1,382           1,382                   -                  -                  -                  -   1,382     1,382      

Bank guarantee fees            -                     -                 175              137                   -                  -                  -                  -   175        137         

Rent Expense          134                134                  -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   134        134         

ECB borrowing            -                     -                    -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   -         -          

Commitment Charges            -                     -                   71                89                   -                  -                  -                  -   71          89           

Finance lease assets          263                  89                  -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   263        89           

Interest Income on Finance Lease            12                  13                  -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   12          13           

Finance lease rental            65                  61                  -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   65          61           

Finance lease addition          287                   -                    -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   287        -          

Finance lease deduction              2                   -                    -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   2            -          

             8                  10                  -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   8            10           

           -                     -                    -                  -                      8                  9                -                  -   8            9             

           -                     -                    -                  -                    24                21                -                  -   24          21           

           -                     -                    -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   -         -          

           -                     -                    -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   -         -          

           -                     -                    -                  -                     -                  -                  -   0                -         0             

Ultimate Holding 
Company

Key management 
personnel

Fellow subsidiary TotalImmediate holding 
company

Ownership Interest

India

India

Place of 
Incorporation

Type

JapanORIX Corporation Ultimate holding 
company

ORIX Housing Finance 
Corporation India Limited

Fellow Subsidiary

India

Particulars

ORIX Auto Infrastructure 
Services Limited

Immediate holding 
company

Infrastructure Leasing And 
Financial Services Ltd

Fellow Subsidiary

Particulars

Tax Payment, Annual Custody Fee & ETC Charges

Cost reimbursement paid to

Director sitting fees

Loans & receivables (Net off ECL)

Income from finance lease

Meeta Sanghvi



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

Details of related party outstanding balances as at the year-end are given below:

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

Current 
Year

Previous 
Year

Net Payable          283             1,219                  -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   283        1,219      

Payable
Management Charges            48                135                  -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   48          135         

Rent Expense            12                  34                  -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   12          34           

Cost reimbursement              1                    5                  -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   1            5             
               -   Other payable          222             1,045                  -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   

Payable            -                     -            20,260         20,276                   -                  -                  -                  -   20,260   20,276    

ECB borrowing            -                     -            20,000         20,000                   -                  -                  -                  -   20,000   20,000    

Interest on ECB borrowing            -                     -                 190              191                   -                  -                  -                  -   190        191         

Bank Guarantee fees            -                     -                   54                70                   -                  -                  -                  -   54          70           

Commitment Charges            -                     -                   16                15                   -                  -                  -                  -   16          15           

Payable towards Director sitting fees
Abhay Kakkar            -                     -                    -                  -                     -   1                               -                  -   -         1             

Nagesh Dubey            -                     -                    -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   -         -          

Rajeev Seth            -                     -                    -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  -   -         -          

Receivable
ORIX Housing Finance Corporation India Limited            -                     -                    -                  -                     -                  -                   1 1                1            1             

Receivable
Infrastructure Leasing & Financial Services Ltd            -                     -                    -                  -                     -                  -                  -   0                -         0             

Immediate holding 
company

Ultimate Holding 
Company

Key management 
personnel

Fellow subsidiary TotalParticulars
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The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India.
(i)

(ii)
A.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Defined benefit obligation                                522                                452 
Fair value of plan assets                                377                                315 
Net defined benefit (obligation) 145                              137                              
Non-current 5                                  36                                
Current                                140                                101 

B. Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Gratuity Funded Gratuity Funded

Defined benefit obligation
Opening balance                                452                                388 

Current service cost                                  58                                  55 

Interest cost (income)                                  33                                  27 

                               543                                470 

Included in OCI

Demographic assumptions -                               (0)                                 

Financial assumptions (10)                               (11)                               

Experience adjustment 84                                32                                

                               617                                491 

Other
Contributions paid by the employer                                (96)                                (39)

Closing balance                                521                                452 

Fair value of plan asset
Opening balance                                316                                328 

Interest income                                  23                                  23 

                               339                                352 

Included in OCI

Remeasurement gain (loss):

Demographic assumptions

Return on plan assets excluding interest income                                  (2)                                  (2)

                               337                                350 

Other
Contributions paid by the employer                                137                                    6 

Benefits paid                                (96)                                (39)
Closing balance                                378                                316 

Represented by

Net defined benefit asset                                  -                                    -   
Net defined benefit liability                                143                                136 

                               143                                136 

Gratuity Funded

Employee benefit

Defined Contribution Plans:
The Company makes contributions towards provident fund, superannuation fund and other retirement benefits to a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. Under the plan, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to 
the retirement benefit plan to fund the benefits.

The Company recognised ₹ 96 (previous year ₹ 83) for superannuation contribution and other retirement benefit contributions in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.
The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
The Company recognised ₹ 179   (previous year ₹ 150) for provident fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined Benefit Plan:
The Company makes annual contributions to the Group Gratuity cum Life Assurance Schemes administered by the Life Insurance Corporation
of India, a funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. The scheme provides for payment as under:
i) On normal retirement / early retirement / withdrawal / resignation:
As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 with vesting period of 5 years of service.
ii) On death in service:
As per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 without any vesting period. The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and
the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at March 31, 2023. The present value of the defined benefit
obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised
in the Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its
components
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(ii)
C. Plan assets

Plan assets comprise the following :

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Investment in scheme of insurance 100% 100%

D. Defined benefit obligations

i. Actuarial assumptions

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages).

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Discount rate 7.48% 7.27%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.48% 7.27%

Salary escalation 7.00% 7.00%

Mortality post retirement Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2006-08) 
(modified) Ultimate

Indian Assured Lives 
Mortality (2006-08) 
(modified) Ultimate

Employee turnover rate (for different age groups) 5.73% & 2% 5.73% & 2%

E. Reconciliation of net liability/asset
Gratuity As at 

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022
Opening Balance 137                              60                                

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss 68                                59                                

Expenses Recognized in OCI 77                                23                                

(Employer benefits)                                137                                    6 

Net liabilityAsset recognised in the balance sheet                                144                                137 

F.
As at 

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022
Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Current 
Period
Current Service Cost 58                                55                                

Net Interest Cost 10                                4                                  

Expenses Recognized                                  68                                  59 

G.
As at 

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022
Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for 
Current Period
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period                                  74                                  21 

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income                                    2                                    2 

Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in OCI                                  77                                  23 

Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit & loss 

Expenses recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Gratuity Funded

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over
which the obligation is to be settled.

Defined Benefit Plan: (Contiuned)

Employee benefit (Continued)
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(ii)
H. Reconciliation of OCI

Gratuity As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Opening Balance 124                              105                              

Acturies losses during the year 57                                19                                

Balance end of the year                                181                                124 

I.
As at 

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022

Prescribed contribution for next  years (12 months)                                140                                101 

J.
As at 

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting

1st following Year                                  27                                  31 

2nd following Year                                  27                                  15 

3rd following Year                                  46                                  24 

4th following Year                                  30                                  33 

5th following Year                                  40                                  32 

Sum of years 6 to 10                                263                                218 

K. Sensitivity analysis

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease 

Discount rate (1% movement) (42)                               48                                (39)                               45                                

Future salary growth (1% movement) 48                                (42)                               44                                (39)                               

Mortality post retirement 0                                  (1)                                 (0)                                 0                                  

iii. Other long term employee benefits.

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of
the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

Compensated absences are payable to employees. The charge towards compensated absences for the year ended 31 March 2023 based on
actuarial valuation using the projected accrued benefit method is ₹.208.83 (previous year ₹ 160.83).

Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation : From the Fund

Other Details

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Gratuity Gratuity

Employee benefit (Continued)

Defined Benefit Plan: (Contiuned)
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Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total

Assets

Cash and bank balances 4,916                -                    4,916                        2,752                -                    2,752                

Bank Deposits 91                     24                     115                           -                    109                   109                   

1 Loans 59,946              1,81,937            2,41,883                   41,632              1,62,708            2,04,340           

Trade receivable 152                   628                   780                           420                   731                   1,151                

Security deposits (premises) -                    27                     27                             -                    24                     24                     

Other Deposits -                    3                       3                               3                       3                       

Retained Interest on Loan Assigned 45                     175                   221                           94                     409                   502                   

Recoverable from sale of assets 12                     -                    12                             12                     -                    12                     

Loans and advances to employees -                    17                     17                             -                    14                     14                     

Exgratia receivable -                    -                    -                            -                    -                    -                    

Out of pocket expenses recoverable 6,028                6,446                12,474                      2,339                3,526                5,865                

Assets held of sales 1,455                -                    1,455                        1,974                -                    1,974                

Non financial assets

Tax payments less provisions -                    3,767                3,767                        -                    2,657                2,657                

Deferred Tax Asset -                    8,047                8,047                        -                    7,217                7,217                

Prepaid Expenses 877                    80                     957                           466                   29                     494                   

Balances with Government authorities 23,203              61                     23,264                      7,876                61                     7,938                

Advances to suppliers of goods and services 545                   -                    545                           760                   -                    760                   

Advances towards assets 5                       -                    5                               0                       -                    0                       

Property, plant and equipment -                    1,687                1,687                        -                    1,609                1,609                

Right-of-use assets -                    309                   309                           -                    375                   375                   

Other Intangible assets -                    137                   137                           -                    194                   194                   

Total Assets 97,274              2,03,346           3,00,620                   58,324              1,79,666           2,37,990           

Liabilities

Financial liability

Trade Payables 4,112                616                   4,728                        3,126                620                   3,745                

Debt Securities 20,395              20,395                      -                    20,403              20,403              

Borrowings 74,879              1,28,653           2,03,532                   63,673              80,217              1,43,889           

Lease liabilities 111                   239                   350                           103                   306                   409                   

Security deposits from lessees 282                   1,782                2,065                        419                   1,153                1,572                

Other Payables to Employees 462                   -                    462                           250                   -                    250                   

Payable in respect of loans assigned 155                   -                    155                           355                   -                    355                   

Provision for expenses 493                   -                    493                           366                   -                    366                   

Advance from customers 3,559                -                    3,559                        3,175                -                    3,175                

Non financial liability

Current tax liabilities (Net) 74                     -                    74                             74                     -                    74                     

Provision for employees' benefits 147                   206                   353                           108                   190                   298                   

Other provisions 29                     -                    29                             60                     -                    60                     

Deferred Income-Securities deposit -                    -                    -                            -                    -                    -                    

 Statutory remittances (Contributions to PF, withholding taxes, 
GST, TDS, etc.) 

193                   -                    193                           166                   -                    166                   

Total Liabilities 1,04,892           1,31,496           2,36,388                   71,875              1,02,888           1,74,763           

Net Assets (7,617)               71,849              64,232                      (13,551)             76,778              63,228              

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

The table below shows the maturity analysis of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be
recovered or settled.
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41 Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration by Geographical region in India:
As at March 31, 2023 East West North South Total

Loan against Hypothecation of Vehicles -                           1,759                        2,405                        607                           4,770                        

Loan against Property 4,184                        34,468                      38,914                      38,922                      1,16,487                   

Finance Lease Receivables 11,779                      33,612                      32,163                      59,431                      1,36,985                   

Total 15,963                      69,839                      73,482                      98,960                      2,58,242                   

As at March 31, 2022 East West North South Total

Loan against Hypothecation of Vehicles -                           2,830                        6,617                        1,082                        10,529                      

Loan against Property 5,779                        40,357                      40,996                      41,353                      1,28,486                   

Finance Lease Receivables 6,617                        16,841                      18,613                      32,982                      75,053                      

Total 12,397                      60,028                      66,226                      75,418                      2,14,068                   

Company’s loan portfolio is predominantly to finance commercial vehicle loans, loan against property and Leasing of vehicles . The
Company manages concentration of risk primarily by geographical region in India.The following tables show the geographical
concentrations of trade advances and loans:
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42 Maximum Exposure to credit Risk

Narrative Description of Collateral

Quantitative Information of Collateral

The value of the collateral for Finance Lease is derived by writing down the asset cost at origination by 20% p.a on straight-line basis. 

Fair value of collateral and credit risk enhancements held
As at March 31, 2023 Exposure to the 

risk
Vehicles & others Land & Building Deposits from 

Lessees
Total Collateral Net Exposure ECL

Loan against Hypothecation of Vehicles                      4,756                      3,023                            -                              -   3,023                     1,733                (2,143)               
Loan against Property                 1,15,157                            -                   2,54,134                            -   2,54,134                (1,38,977)          (12,184)             
Finance Lease Receivables                 1,35,258                 1,48,421                            -                        2,065 1,50,486                (15,227)             (2,034)               

Total 2,55,171                1,51,444                2,54,134                2,065                     4,07,642                (1,52,471)          (16,361)             

The above table includes advances and outstanding.

As at March 31, 2022 Exposure to the 
risk

Vehicles & others Land & Building Deposits from 
Lessees

Total Collateral Net Exposure ECL

Loan against Hypothecation of Vehicles                    10,473                    11,146                            -   -                         11,146                   (673)                  (1,675)               
Loan against Property                 1,27,005                            -                   3,71,926 -                         3,71,926                (2,44,921)          (6,330)               
Finance Lease Receivables                    74,928                    72,818                            -   1,572                     74,390                   538                   (1,723)               

Total 2,12,406                83,964                   3,71,926                1,572                     4,57,462                (2,45,056)          (9,728)               

The above table includes advances and outstanding.

The value of the collateral for Loan against property is based on valuation of property at the time of loan.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of advances is their carrying amount. The maximum exposure is before considering the effect of mitigation 
through collateral.

Collateral primarily include vehicles for Commercial Vehicle Loans and Finance Lease; whereas for Loan against property collateral includes property.

The value of the collateral for Commercial Vehicle Loan is derived by writing down the asset cost at origination by 16.66% p.a on straight-line basis. 
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43 Credit quality of loans

The Company reviews the credit quality of its loans based on the ageing of the loan.
The ageing of the loan is segregated in three stages. These stages are mentioned in Inputs considered in the ECL model.

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Loan against Hypothecation of Vehicles 1,967                          317                             2,486                           4,770                              

Loan against Property 85,711                        8,331                          22,445                         1,16,487                         

Finance Lease Receivables 1,28,369                     5,351                          3,265                           1,36,985                         

Total 2,16,047                     13,999                        28,196                         2,58,242                         

The above table includes advances and outstanding.

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Loan against Hypothecation of Vehicles 5,765                          1,778                          2,986                           10,529                            

Loan against Property 92,806                        22,006                        13,515                         1,28,327                         

Finance Lease Receivables 66,110                        4,793                          4,295                           75,198                            

Total 1,64,681                     28,577                        20,796                         2,14,054                         

The above table includes advances and outstanding.

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk:
New asset classification norms covering ever and daily NPAs were implemented in FY 2023.
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a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

IND AS 116 disclosure
Particular  As at 

31 March, 2023 
 As at 

31 March, 2022 
Depreciation charge of ROU 121                                                 108                                                 

Interest expenses on lease liability 28                                                   28                                                   

Expenses for short term leases 48                                                   44                                                   

Expenses for low value leases -                                                  -                                                  

Cash outflow of leases during the year 139                                                 120                                                 

Additions to ROU during the year (New premises on lease) 55                                                   352                                                 

Carrying amount of ROU as at 309                                                 375                                                 

Set our below are the carrying amount of lease liability and movement during the year

Opening balance 409                                                 155                                                 

Addition 55                                                   351                                                 

Deletion -                                                  -                                                  

Accertion of interest 28                                                   28                                                   

Payment 141                                                 126                                                 

Closing balance 350                                                 409                                                 

Maturity analysis of cash flow

Less than 6 months 68                                                   63                                                   

6-12 months 64                                                   65                                                   

1-2 years 129                                                 111                                                 

2-5 years 127                                                 229                                                 

More than 5 years -                                                  -                                                  

Total 388                                                 468                                                 

The effective interest rate for lease liability is in the range of 6.52% - 8.66% with maturity between June 2021 to May 2026

As a result of ongoing pandemic, the lessor and the Company mutually agreed concession in rental for premises. There is a reduction in lease 
payments due to rent concession. As these concessions are short term, the change in lease payments of ₹ 7 (P Y ₹ 5) is credited to profit and 
loss account. 

The Company had taken office premises under cancellable and non-cancellable operating lease agreements that were renewable on a periodic
basis at the option of both the lessor and the lessee. The operating lease agreements extended up to a maximum of nine years from their
respective dates of inception and some of these lease agreements had price escalation clause. 

Leases as per Ind AS 116: -

The Company will not reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease. Accordingly, the definition of lease in accordance with Ind AS 17
will continue to be applied to lease contracts entered by the Company or modified by the Company before April 1, 2018,

The Company has applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment. Consequently, the
Company has recorded its lease liability using the present value of remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate
at the date of initial application and the right-of-use asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement
date of the lease, but discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application,

The Company does not recognize ROU assets and lease liabilities for leases with less than twelve months of lease term on the date of initial
application.
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Assets classification as at 31 March 2023

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms
Asset classification as per 

Ind AS 109
Gross Carrying Amount 

as per Ind AS

Loss Allowances 
(Provisions) as required 

under Ind AS 109
Net Carrying Amount

Provisions required as 
per IRACP norms

Difference between Ind 
AS 109 provisions and 

IRACP norms

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7) = (4)-(6)

Performing Assets

Standard Stage 1 2,16,047                             1,659                                  2,14,388                                2,149                                  (490)                                    

Stage 2 13,999                                778                                     13,221                                    1,017                                  (239)                                    

Subtotal 2,30,046                             2,437                                  2,27,609                             3,166                                  (729)                                    

Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Substandard Stage 3 14,100                                3,044                                  11,056                                    1,634                                  1,410                                  

Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 5,063                                  3,688                                  1,375                                      1,333                                  2,355                                  

1 to 3 years Stage 3 7,466                                  5,979                                  1,487                                      3,856                                  2,123                                  

More than 3 years Stage 3 1,492                                  1,159                                  333                                          915                                     244                                     

Subtotal for doubtful 14,021                                10,826                                3,195                                  6,104                                  4,722                                  

Loss Stage 3 75                                       52                                       23                                            76                                       (24)                                      

Subtotal for NPA 75                                       52                                       23                                       76                                       (24)                                      

Stage 1 26,547                                62                                       26,485                                    -                                      62                                       

Stage 2 -                                      -                                      -                                          -                                      -                                      

Stage 3 1,300                                  517                                     783                                          -                                      517                                     

Subtotal 27,847                                579                                     27,268                                -                                      579                                     

Total Stage 1 2,42,594                             1,721                                  2,40,873                             2,149                                  (428)                                    

Stage 2 13,999                                778                                     13,221                                1,017                                  (239)                                    

Stage 3 29,496                                14,439                                15,057                                7,814                                  6,625                                  

Total 2,86,089                             16,938                                2,69,151                             10,980                                5,958                                  

Assets classification as at 31 March 2022

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms
Asset classification as per 

Ind AS 109
Gross Carrying Amount 

as per Ind AS

Loss Allowances 
(Provisions) as required 

under Ind AS 109
Net Carrying Amount

Provisions required as 
per IRACP norms

Difference between Ind 
AS 109 provisions and 

IRACP norms

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7) = (4)-(6)

Performing Assets

Standard Stage 1 1,64,681                                2,758                                      1,61,923                                2,488                                      270                                     

Stage 2 28,577                                    1,349                                      27,228                                    1,278                                      71                                       

Subtotal 1,93,258                             4,107                                  1,89,151                             3,766                                  341                                     

Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Substandard Stage 3 9,320                                      1,878                                      7,442                                      1,205                                      673                                     

Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 6,444                                      1,612                                      4,832                                      2,460                                      (848)                                    

1 to 3 years Stage 3 4,473                                      1,882                                      2,591                                      1,650                                      232                                     

More than 3 years Stage 3 472                                          188                                          284                                          294                                          (106)                                    

Subtotal for doubtful 11,389                                3,682                                  7,707                                  4,404                                  (722)                                    

Loss Stage 3 87                                            60                                            27                                            79                                            (19)                                      

Subtotal for NPA 87                                       60                                       27                                       79                                       (19)                                      

Stage 1 16,563                                    96                                            16,467                                    -                                      96                                       

Stage 2 67                                            -                                          67                                            -                                      -                                      

Stage 3 1,168                                      118                                          1,050                                      -                                      118                                     

Subtotal 17,797                                214                                     17,584                                -                                      214                                     

Total Stage 1 1,81,245                             2,854                                  1,78,390                             2,488                                  366                                     

Stage 2 28,644                                1,349                                  27,295                                1,278                                  71                                       

Stage 3 21,964                                5,738                                  16,226                                5,688                                  50                                       

Total 2,31,853                             9,941                                  2,21,911                             9,454                                  487                                     

Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments, etc. which 
are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered under current 
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning 
(IRACP) norms

Since the total impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 is higher than the total provisioning required under IRACP (including standard asset provisioning) as at 31 March 2023, no amount is
required to be transferred to ‘Impairment Reserve’.

Disclosure as per RBI circular number DOR(NBFC).CC.PD.NO.109/22.10.106/2019-20 for comparison between Provision as per IRACP norms &
expected credit loss as per Ind AS 109

Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments, etc. which 
are in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered under current 
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning 
(IRACP) norms

Since the total impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 is higher than the total provisioning required under IRACP (including standard asset provisioning) as at 31 March 2022, no amount is 
required to be transferred to ‘Impairment Reserve’.
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A B C D E
Exposure to accounts 
classified as Standard 

consequent to 
implementation of 
resolution plan – 

Position as at the end of 
the previous year

Of (A), aggregate debt 
that slipped into NPA 

during the year

Of (A) amount written 
off during the year

Of (A) amount paid by 
the borrowers during 

the year

Exposure to accounts 
classified as Standard 

consequent to 
implementation of 
resolution plan – 

Position as at the end of 
this year

Personal Loans                                  -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -   

Corporate persons*                           57,072                             6,298                                  -                             10,932                           46,149 

Of which, MSMEs                           55,436                             5,711                                  -                             10,932                           44,503 

Others                             1,636                                587                                  -                                    -                               1,646 

Total                           57,072                             6,298                                  -                             10,932                           46,149 

*As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

Disclosure in accordance with RBI Circular No. RBI/2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated 
August 6, 2020 in relation to the Resolution Framework for COVID-19 related stress:

Types of borrower
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47 Finance Lease and Operating Lease as Lessor

 As at 
31 March, 2023 

 As at 
31 March, 2022 

Finance lease income                           14,099                            7,800 

Net investment in finance lease                        1,27,592                          68,733 

Category of lease
 As at 

31 March, 2023 
 As at 

31 March, 2022 
Vehicle                           93,440                          46,147 

Equipment                           35,252                          23,343 

Two Wheeler                                  15                                 32 

Furniture & Fixture                                  84                               129 

                       1,28,791                          69,651 

Movement of net investment in finance lease
 As at 

31 March, 2023 
 As at 

31 March, 2022 
Opening balance                           68,733                          42,492 

Net addition/(deletion)                           58,859                          26,241 

Net closing of net investment in finance leaase                        1,27,592                          68,733 

Gross investment in lease and present value of minimum lease payments for each of the following periods are as follows:

 Gross 
investment in 

lease 

 Net present value of 
minimum lease 

payment 

 Gross investment in 
lease 

 Net present value of 
minimum lease 

payment 

Less than one year 58,407               43,573                         33,040                        25,248                          

Between one and five years 1,00,896            85,218                         52,124                        44,403                          

More than five years -                     -                               -                              -                                

1,59,303            1,28,791                      85,164                        69,651                          

Operating Lease as Lessor

Operating leases rental:
For the year ended  

31 March, 2023
For the year ended  

31 March, 2022
Operating leases rental                               516                                 625 

Total                               516                                 625 

The Company has given vehicles on finance lease. These leases have a primary period ranging from 2 to 5 years , which is fixed and cannot be
terminated without consent of both the parties. There are no exceptional / restrictive covenants in the lease agreements. The reconciliation between
the total gross investment in the lease at the balance sheet date and the present value of minimum lease payments receivable at the balance sheet
are as follows:

The Company gives vehicles under operating lease. These leases have an average primary period of 2 to 4 years which is fixed and cannot be
terminated without the consent of both the parties. No purchase options are given to the lessees during or at the end of the lease term. On
retirement of vehicles from the rental business i.e. when a vehicle is not actively let out on a lease for more than a year, the vehicle becomes held
for sale and reclassified to inventory. Any contingent rent is not considered as part of minimum lease payment as they are not reasonably measured
at the commencement of the lease and recognized in profit and loss as income when received. 

 As at 
31 March, 2023 

 As at 
31 March, 2022 

Risk management on the residual interest of the leasing portfolio happens through the process of residual value committee. Residual value
committee meets on a periodic basis and determines the residual value that are offered for each model. In case of Finance lease transaction , there
is a commitment by the lessee / user and guaranteed residual value is included in lease payment receivable. The same is factored lease rental
calculation and hence residual value risk is taken care of.

Risk management on the residual interest of the leasing portfolio happens through the process of Residual Value committee. Residual Value
committee meets on a periodic basis and determines the residual value that are offered for each model. 
In case of Operating lease transaction residual value committee decides the residual value of each asset class. The Company has adequate
expertise, data and resources to estimate the residual value at the inception of lease and manage the sale process at the end of lease tenor.
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47 Finance Lease as Lessor (Continued)

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
As at 

31 March, 2023
As at 

31 March, 2022
As at 

1 April, 2016
Less than one year 386                             460                               

Between one and five years 708                             467                               

More than five years -                              -                                

Total 1,094                          927                               
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48 Segment Reporting

Information about major customers

The Managing Director (MD) been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The MD regularly reviews the performance
reports and make decisions about allocation of resources.

An operating segment is a component of the company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue and incur expenses,
for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company provides financial services such as Finance Leasing of Passenger Cars, install ment loans for Commercial Vehicles ("CV") and
Loan against Property ("LAP') in India.

The Company does not disclose separate segment information as the external reporting information provided in these financial statements
reflects internal management information. Thus the assets and result of the segment can be determined by reference to the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Profit and Loss for year respectively.

No revenue from transaction with a single customer amounted to 10% or more of the Company's total revenue in the year ended 31st March
2023 or 31st March 2022.

In the opinion of the CODM, the Company has 'Lending' as the only business segment. Also, the Company operates only in India and it
perceives that there is no significant difference in its risks and returns in operating from different geographic areas within India.
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A. Accounting classification and fair values

March 31, 2023
INR actual

 Carrying value  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Financial assets 

 Cash and cash equivalents                        5,031                        5,031                              -                                -   5,031                       

 Loan against Hypothecation of vehicle                        2,628                              -                          2,647                              -   2,647                       

 Loan against Property                   1,04,303                              -                     1,25,588                              -   1,25,588                  

 Finance Leases                   1,34,952                              -                     1,38,354                              -   1,38,354                  

 Trade receivable                           780                              -                             780                              -   780                          

 Security deposits Premises*                             27                              -                               27                              -   27                            

 Sundry Deposits                               3                              -                                 3                              -   3                              

 Retained Interest on Loan Assigned                            221                              -                             221                              -   221                          

 Recoverable from sale of assets                             12                              -                               12                              -   12                            

 Loans and advances to employees                              17                              -                               17                              -   17                            

 Out of pocket expenses recoverable                      12,474                              -                        12,474                              -   12,474                     

                  2,60,448 5,031                       2,80,123                  -                           2,85,154                  

Financial liabilities 

 Trade payables                        4,728                              -                          4,728                              -   4,728                       

 Non-convertible Debentures                      20,395                              -                        21,029                              -   21,029                     

 Term Loan                   1,75,659                              -                     1,82,847                              -   1,82,847                  

 ECB Borrowing from parent company                      20,190                              -                        22,312                              -   22,312                     

 Cash Credit                        3,983                              -                          3,983                              -   3,983                       

 Overdraft facilities                        3,418                              -                          3,418                              -   3,418                       

 Loans from Related Parties                           282                              -                             282                              -   282                          

 Security Deposits From Lessees*                        2,065                              -                          2,065                              -   2,065                       

 Other Payables to Employees                           462                              -                             462                              -   462                          

 Payable in respect of loans assigned                           155                              -                             155                              -   155                          

 Provision for expenses                           493                              -                             493                              -   493                          

 Advance from customers                        3,559                              -                          3,559                              -   3,559                       

 Lease liabilities (refer note 44)                           350                              -                             350                              -   350                          

                  2,35,739                              -                     2,45,683                              -                     2,45,683 

ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except stated)

Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below. 

 Fair value 
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A. Accounting classification and fair values (Continued)

March 31, 2022
INR actual

 Carrying value  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Financial assets 
 Cash and cash equivalents                        2,861                        2,861                              -                                -   2,861                       
 Loan against Hypothecation of vehicle                        8,854                              -                          8,916                              -   8,916                       
 Loan against Property                   1,22,156                              -                     1,22,207                              -   1,22,207                  
 Finance Leases                      73,331                              -                        75,484                              -   75,484                     
 Trade receivable                        1,151                              -                          1,151                              -   1,151                       
 Security deposits Premises*                             24                              -                               24                              -   24                            
 Sundry Deposits                               3                              -                                 3                              -   3                              
 Retained Interest on Loan Assigned                            502                              -                             502                              -   502                          
 Recoverable from sale of assets                             12                              -                               12                              -   12                            
 Loans and advances to employees                              14                              -                               14                              -   14                            
 Bank Deposits maturity more than 12 months                              -                                -                                -                                -   -                           
 Out of pocket expenses recoverable                        5,865                              -                          5,865                              -   5,865                       

                  2,14,773 2,861                       2,14,178                  -                           2,17,039                  

Financial liabilities 
 Trade payables                        3,745                              -                          3,745                              -   3,745                       
 Non-convertible Debentures                      20,403                              -                        22,360                              -   22,360                     
 Term Loan                   1,18,534                              -                     1,21,360                              -   1,21,360                  
 ECB Borrowing from parent company                      21,134                              -                        25,536                              -   25,536                     
 Cash Credit                        3,004                              -                          3,004                              -   3,004                       
 Overdraft facilities                              (0)                              -                                (0)                              -   (0)                             
 Loans from Related Parties                        1,217                              -                          1,217                              -   1,217                       
 Security Deposits From Lessees*                        1,572                              -                          1,572                              -   1,572                       
 Other Payables to Employees                           250                              -                             250                              -   250                          
 Payable in respect of loans assigned                           355                              -                             355                              -   355                          
 Provision for expenses                           366                              -                             366                              -   366                          
 Advance from customers                        3,175                              -                          3,175                              -   3,175                       
 Lease liabilities (refer note 44)                           409                              -                             409                              -   409                          

                  1,74,164                              -                     1,83,349                              -                     1,83,349 

B. Measurement of fair values

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Type

Fixed rates long term borrowings

Security Deposits 

Loans

(1) Assets that are not financial assets (such as prepaid expenses, advances to suppliers etc.), are not included.
(2) The Carrying amounts is recognised at amortised cost except for those marked with (*) which are recognised at fair value.
(3) In this table, the Company has disclosed the fair value of each class of financial assets and financial liabilities in a way that permits the
information to be compared with their carrying amounts. In addition, it has reconciled the assets and liabilities to the different categories of
financial instruments as defined in Ind AS 109. This presentation method is optional and a different presentation method may be more
appropriate, depending on circumstances.
(4) Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date. 
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly. 
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

a. Fair value of cash and bank balances, trade payables, other current financial assets and liabilities, approximate their carrying amounts
largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.
b. The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant
unobservable inputs used.

 The valuation model considers present value of expected 
payments discounted using an appropriate discounting rate. 

 The valuation model considers present value of expected 
payments discounted using an appropriate discounting rate. 

 The valuation model considers present value of expected 
payments discounted using an appropriate discounting rate. 

Valuation technique

Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management (Continued)

 Fair value 
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Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
▪ Market Risk (Interest Rate risk)
▪ Credit risk ;
▪ Liquidity risk ; and
▪ Currency risk

i. Risk management framework

ii. Interst risk management framework

Exposure to interest rate risk

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Interest bearing financial liabilities

Fixed rate borrowings

 Non-convertible unsecured debentures 20,000                                       20,000 

 Term Loan 62,098                                       42,000 

Security Deposits 2,065                                           1,572 

Total                     84,163                     63,572 

Variable rate borrowings

Term Loan 1,33,272                                    97,291 

Cash Credit 3,987                                           3,004 

Overdraft Facilities 3,402                                                (0)

Loans and advances from related party 282                                              1,217 

Total                  1,40,943                  1,01,512 

Interest bearing financial assets

Fixed rate assets

Deposit with original maturity of more than 3 months but residual 
maturity of less than 12 months

115                                                 109 

Loan against Hypothecation of vehicle 2,628                                           8,854 

Finance Leases 1,34,952                73,331                   

Loan against Property (ECLGS) 3,101                     4,327                     

Loans and advances to employees 17                          14                          

Total                  1,40,813                     86,636 

Variable rate assets

Loan against Property 1,01,202                                  1,17,828 

Total                  1,01,202                  1,17,828 

ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except stated)

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates primarily to the Company's borrowings with floating interest
rates. 

Company’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings. The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as 
reported to the management of the Company is as follows.

 INR

Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management (Continued)

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. 
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to
maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.
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ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except stated)

Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management (Continued)

ii. Interst risk management framework (Continued)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

INR 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

March 31, 2023

Variable-rate instruments borrowing                       1,409                     (1,409)

Variable-rate instruments advances                       1,012                     (1,012)

INR 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

March 31, 2022

Variable-rate instruments borrowing                       1,015                     (1,015)

Variable-rate instruments advances                       1,178                     (1,178)

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate across all yield curves. The sensitivity has been calculated
assuming the Interest bearing asset and liabilities outstanding at the reporting date have been outstanding for the entire reporting year.  

The Company does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a
change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or loss by the
amounts shown below. 

Profit or (loss)
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ii. Credit risk

ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except stated)

Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management (Continued)

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and loans and advances.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from loans against hypothecation of vehicle, loans against
property and finance leases as mentioned below. 

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. 

for the year ended 31 March 2023

Amounts arising from Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
i. Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment on Loans against hypothecation of vehicles, Loans against
property and Finance Lease receivables
Inputs considered in the ECL model:
When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis based on the Company’s historical experience, expert credit assessment and including forward
looking information.
In assessing the impairment of loan assets under Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Model, the loans have been segmented into three stages based
on the risk profiles. The three stages reflect the general pattern of credit deterioration of a financial instrument. 
The company categorises Finance Lease, Commercial Vehicle Loan and Loan against property assets into stages based on the days past due
status.
- Stage 1: 0-30 days past due
- Stage 2: 31- 90 days past due
- Stage 3: More than 90 days past due

Assumption considered in the ECL model:
- "Probability of default" (PD) is defined as the probability of whether the borrowers will default on their obligations in the future. 
- "Loss given default" (LGD) is an estimate of loss from a transaction given that a default occurs.  
- "Exposure at default" (EAD) represents the expected exposure in the event of a default and is the gross carrying amount in case of the
financial assets held by the Company.

Estimation techniques:
The following risk parameters have been assessed to evaluate the ECL :
- The probability of default is assessed based on the flow of receivables flowing through successive DPD bucket based on past portfolio
performance.
- Loss given default is assessed based on factors such as past recoveries, applicable regulatory guidance etc. Given the Loans against
hypothecation of vehicles is a liquidating portfolio, the LGD for this portfolio has been stressed and kept at 40%
- For assets which are in Stage 1, a 12 month ECL is assessed.  For Stage 2 and stage 3 assets a lifetime ECL is assessed 
-Exposure at default is arrived at after factoring in prepayments, which are estimated based on past portfolio performance. These have been
adjusted to factor in the situation arising out of COVID 19

Forward looking information:
The below table shows the values of forward looking macro economic variable used in each of the scenarios for the ECL calculation. For this
purpose the Company has used the data source of Economist Intelligence Unit. GDP has been used as a macro economic factor to calculate
the forward looking probabilities of default. The upside downside % change has been derived using historical standard deviation from the
base scenario based on previous 7 years change in the variables.



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except stated)

for the year ended 31 March 2023

ii. Credit risk (Continued)

ECL Scenario Best Case Base Case Worst Case

Probability assigned -Finance Lease 
receivables

21.20% 68.20% 10.60%

Probability assigned -Loan Against Property 21.20% 68.20% 10.60%

Probability assigned -Loans against 
hypothecation of vehicles

21.20% 68.20% 10.60%

2023 (%)                       10.81                         5.40                       (0.01)

2024 (%)                       11.61                         6.20                         0.79 

2025 (%)                       11.91                         6.50                         1.09 

2026 (%)                       12.01                         6.60                         1.19 

2027 (%)                       11.51                         6.10                         0.69 

2028 (%)                       11.66                         6.26                         0.85 

2029 (%)                       13.22                         7.81                         2.41 

Subsequent years (%)                       11.44                         6.04                         0.63 

Based on the detailed evaluation, the Company has:
- Stress tested its ALM position and the Company has a comfortable liquidity outlook across all maturity buckets and has adequate liquidity 
position maintained in form of high-quality liquid assets and undrawn committed lines of credit.  
- One of the consequences of Covid had been that courts had become non-operational and legal processes got extended. As a result, there 
had been extension in resolutions of accounts in the Default category. Even though the legal processes are now operational, the management, 
in the LAP portfolio, has presently decided to keep a minimum ECL% for accounts in Default category, depending on which delinquency 
bucket each specific account falls into. This will be reviewed from time to time.
-Certain loan accounts had been extended resolution under the Resolution Framework for COVID-19-related Stress announced by the RBI at 
various points of time. For MSME and Non MSME accounts, the management has kept a minimum ECL floor of 5% and 10% respectively. 
For CV accounts a floor of 10% has been kept.

Definition of default
A default is when the counterparty fails to make the contractual payments within 90 days of when they fall due. This definition of default is
determined by considering the business environment in which the company operates and other micro-economic factors. 



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except stated)

for the year ended 31 March 2023

ii Exposure at default and Loss allowance
The following table shows the exposure at default and loss allowance for the same

EAD ECL EAD ECL
Stage 1                     85,711                       1,287                     92,806                       2,032 

Stage 2                       8,331                          642                     22,006                       1,135 

Stage 3                     22,445                     10,256                     13,515                       3,163 

Total                  1,16,487                     12,185                  1,28,327                       6,330 

EAD ECL EAD ECL
Stage 1                       1,967                          110                       5,765                          353 

Stage 2                          317                            26                       1,778                          131 

Stage 3                       2,486                       2,005                       2,986                       1,191 

Total                       4,770                       2,141                     10,529                       1,675 

EAD ECL EAD ECL
Stage 1            1,28,369                    262               66,110                    373 
Stage 2                 5,351                    110                 4,793                      83 
Stage 3                 3,265                 1,661                 4,295                 1,266 
Total                  1,36,985                       2,033                     75,198                       1,722 

Trade receivable 31st March 2023 31st March 2022

0 DPD

1-60 DPD                            28                            66 

61-90 DPD                            17                            34 

90+ DPD                       1,250                       1,168 

Total 1295 1268

Loss Allowance                          515 118

The following table shows reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of gross exposure
Gross carrying amount Stage One Stage Two Stage Three Total

Loan against Hypothecation of Vehicles

Balance as at April 1, 2021                     15,579                       1,813                       8,214                     25,606 

Transfer to stage one                          649                        (314)                        (335)                             -   

Transfer to stage two                     (2,402)                       2,490                          (88)                             -   

Transfer to stage three                     (1,448)                        (357)                       1,805                             -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance                     (3,794)                     (1,080)                       3,936                        (938)

New financial assets originated or purchased                             -                               -                               -                               -   

Financial assets that have been derecognised                     (2,819)                        (772)                     (6,083)                     (9,674)

Write – offs                             -                              (2)                     (4,463)                     (4,465)

Balance as at March 31, 2022                       5,765                       1,778                       2,986                     10,529 

Transfer to stage one                          611                        (377)                        (234)                             -   

Transfer to stage two                        (420)                          420                             -                               -   

Transfer to stage three                        (363)                        (635)                          998                             -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance                     (1,796)                        (284)                        (511)                     (2,591)

New financial assets originated or purchased                             -                               -                               -                               -   

Financial assets that have been derecognised                     (1,830)                        (585)                        (753)                     (3,168)

Write – offs                             -                               -                               -                               -   

Balance as at March 31, 2023                       1,967                          317                       2,486                       4,770 

Policy for write-off of loan assets
No write offs have been done by the management during the periods for consideration.

 Loan against Property 2023 2022

 Loan against Hypothecation of vehicle 2023 2022

 Finance Leases 2023 2022
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except stated)

for the year ended 31 March 2023

Gross carrying amount Stage One Stage Two Stage Three Total

Loan against Property

Balance as at April 1, 2021                  1,21,995                     20,701                     14,387                  1,57,083 

Transfer to stage one                       3,656                     (2,572)                     (1,084)                             -   

Transfer to stage two                     (7,091)                       7,416                        (325)                             -   

Transfer to stage three                     (3,331)                     (2,202)                       5,533                             -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance                     (1,832)                          116                     (1,571)                     (3,287)

New financial assets originated or purchased                       1,579                            38                            11                       1,628 

Financial assets that have been derecognised                   (22,169)                     (1,491)                     (3,436)                   (27,096)

Write – offs                             -                               -                               -                               -   

Balance as at March 31, 2022                     92,806                     22,006                     13,515                  1,28,327 

Transfer to stage one                     13,014                   (11,900)                     (1,114)                             -   

Transfer to stage two                     (5,234)                       5,679                        (445)                             -   

Transfer to stage three                     (8,330)                     (4,271)                     12,601                             -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance                     (3,292)                            43                          (90)                     (3,339)

New financial assets originated or purchased                     15,459                            51                            14                     15,524 

Financial assets that have been derecognised                   (18,712)                     (3,277)                     (2,036)                   (24,025)

Write – offs                             -                               -                               -                               -   

Balance as at March 31, 2023                     85,711                       8,331                     22,445                  1,16,487 

Gross carrying amount Stage One Stage Two Stage Three Total

Finance Lease Receivables

Balance as at April 1, 2021                     34,764                       9,240                       3,452                     47,456 

Transfer to stage one                       6,792                     (6,749)                          (43)                             -   

Transfer to stage two                     (1,206)                       1,240                          (34)                             -   

Transfer to stage three                        (199)                        (193)                          392                             -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance                     13,170                          552                        (413)                     13,309 

New financial assets originated or purchased                     14,039                          808                       1,238                     16,085 

Financial assets that have been derecognised                     (1,250)                        (105)                        (212)                     (1,567)

Write – offs                             -                               -                            (85)                          (85)

Balance as at March 31, 2022                     66,110                       4,793                       4,295                     75,198 

Transfer to stage one                       4,704                     (4,445)                        (259)                             -   

Transfer to stage two                     (3,218)                       3,267                          (49)                             -   

Transfer to stage three                        (359)                          (52)                          411                             -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance                     42,519                          859                        (810)                     42,568 

New financial assets originated or purchased                     19,488                       1,001                          320                     20,809 

Financial assets that have been derecognised                        (875)                          (72)                        (558)                     (1,505)

Write – offs                             -                               -                               -                               -   

Balance as at March 31, 2023                  1,28,369                       5,351                       3,350                  1,37,070 
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except stated)

for the year ended 31 March 2023

The following table shows reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the loss allowances and write offs:

12-month ECL
Lifetime ECL not 

credit-impaired
Lifetime ECL 

credit-impaired
Total

Loan against Hypothecation of Vehicles

Balance as at March 31, 2021                          595                            91                       2,854                       3,540 

Transfer to 12 month ECL                          115                          (17)                          (98)                             -   

Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired                          (86)                          112                          (26)                             -   

Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit impaired                        (114)                          (21)                          135                             -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance                        (110)                              1                       2,249                       2,140 

New financial assets originated or purchased                             -                               -                               -                               -   

Financial assets that have been derecognised                          (47)                          (35)                     (2,231)                     (2,313)

Write – offs                             -                               -                       (1,692)                     (1,692)

Balance as at March 31, 2022                          353                          131                       1,191                       1,675 

Transfer to 12 month ECL                          121                          (27)                          (94)                             -   

Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired                          (30)                            30                             -                               -   

Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit impaired                          (31)                          (57)                            88                             -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance                        (241)                          (17)                       1,121                          863 

New financial assets originated or purchased                             -                               -                               -                               -   

Financial assets that have been derecognised                          (62)                          (34)                        (301)                        (397)

Write – offs                             -                               -                               -                               -   

Balance as at March 31, 2023                          110                            26                       2,005                       2,141 

Write Offs - Loan against Hypothecation of Vehicles

For the year ended 
31 March 2023

For the year ended 
31 March 20022

Amount of outstanding written off during the 
period but still recoverable

-                         4,514

12-month ECL
Lifetime ECL not 

credit-impaired
Lifetime ECL 

credit-impaired
Total

Loan against Property

Balance as at April 1, 2021                       1,771                          786                       1,749                       4,306 

Transfer to 12 month ECL                          332                        (198)                        (134)                             -   

                       (210)                          249                          (39)                             -   

Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit impaired                        (115)                        (156)                          271                             -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance                          440                          480                       1,731                       2,651 

                             2                              2                              2                              6 

                       (188)                          (28)                        (417)                        (633)

Write – offs                             -                               -                               -                               -   

Balance as at March 31, 2022                       2,032                       1,135                       3,163                       6,330 

Transfer to 12 month ECL                          672                        (475)                        (197)                             -   

                       (211)                          301                          (90)                             -   

Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit impaired                        (363)                        (340)                          703                             -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance                        (564)                          181                       7,125                       6,742 

                           17                              3                              3                            23 

                       (296)                        (163)                        (451)                        (910)

Write – offs                             -                               -                               -                               -   

Balance as at March 31, 2023                       1,287                          642                     10,256                     12,185 

Write Offs - Loan against Property

For the year ended 
31 March 2023

For the year ended 
31 March 2022

Amount of outstanding written off during the 
period but still recoverable

-                         -                                                     -   

Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired

New financial assets originated or purchased

Financial assets that have been derecognised

Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired

New financial assets originated or purchased

Financial assets that have been derecognised
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except stated)

for the year ended 31 March 2023

12-month ECL
Lifetime ECL not 

credit-impaired
Lifetime ECL 

credit-impaired
Total

Finance Lease Receivables

Balance as at April 1, 2021                          161                          185                          395                          741 

Transfer to 12 month ECL                          142                        (139)                            (3)                             -   

Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired                            (9)                            12                            (3)                             -   

Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit impaired                             -                              (1)                              1                             -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance                            36                            15                          849                          900 

New financial assets originated or purchased                            51                            16                          134                          201 

Financial assets that have been derecognised                            (8)                            (5)                          (22)                          (35)

Write – offs                             -                               -                            (85)                          (85)

Balance as at March 31, 2022                          373                            83                       1,266                       1,722 

Transfer to 12 month ECL                          126                          (79)                          (47)                             -   

Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired                          (87)                            92                            (5)                             -   

Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit impaired                            (2)                            (1)                              3                             -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance                        (184)                              3                          417                          236 

New financial assets originated or purchased                            39                            12                            83                          134 

Financial assets that have been derecognised                            (3)                             -                            (56)                          (59)

Write – offs                             -                               -                               -                               -   

Balance as at March 31, 2023                          262                          110                       1,661                       2,033 

Write Offs - Finance Lease Receivables

For the year ended 
31 March 2023

For the year ended 
31 March 2022

Amount of outstanding written off during the 
period but still recoverable

-                         85

Security Deposits, CV lease and other advances 
2022-23 2021-22

Opening balance                          214                          185 

Net Impairment loss recognised 363                            29 

Balance written back

Closing balance                          577                          214 

Trade receivables are non interest bearing and generally on terms of 30-90 days

Trade receivable days past due Current 1-30 days 31-60 61-90 91 and above Total

31st March 2023

ECL rate 0% 0% 0% 10%

EAD 11 17 17 1,250 1,295

ECL 4 7 7 497 515

Net carrying amount -                          7 10 10 753 780

31st March 2022

ECL rate 0% 0% 0% 10%

EAD                            33                            33                            34                       1,168 1,268

ECL                              0                              0                              0                          118 118

Net carrying amount -                          33 33 34 1,050 1,150
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for the year ended 31 March 2023

ECL changes on Financial instruments recorded in P&L

Year ended 31 March 2023
12-month ECL

Lifetime ECL not 
credit-impaired

Lifetime ECL 
credit-impaired

Simplified 
approach

Total

Loan against Hypothecation of Vehicles -745                        (493) 7,093 5,855

Loan against Property -243 -105 814 466

Finance Lease Receivables                        (111)                            27 395 311

Trade receivables and others 364 364

Total -1,099 -571 8,302 364 6,996

Year ended 31 March 2022
12-month ECL

Lifetime ECL not 
credit-impaired

Lifetime ECL 
credit-impaired

Simplified 
approach

Total

Loan against Hypothecation of Vehicles -242 40 -1,663 -1,865

Loan against Property 261                          349 1,414 2,024

Finance Lease Receivables                          212 -102 871                          982 

Trade receivables and others 76 76

Total 231 287 622 76 1,216

There is no material concentration of loss allowance at any particular geographic area.

iii. Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment of all other Assets other than Loans against hypothecation
of vehicles (CV), Loans against property (LAP) and Finance Lease receivables (FL)

The Organization has adopted the simplified approach for estimation of impairment for such assets. Stage wise loss rates have been imputed
from CV, LAP & FL as applicable in each of the other assets to arrive at the  estimation of impairment for these assets.
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iii. Liquidity risk

Maturity profile of  financial assets and liabilities

March 31, 2023
INR actuals

Carrying amount Total
Less than 6 

months
6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years

More than 5 
years

Financial assets

 Loans 

 Cash and cash equivalents                   5,031                   5,031                   5,031                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Loan against Hypothecation of vehicle                   2,628                   5,125                   3,000                      977                      882                      266                         -   

 Loan against Property               1,04,303               2,96,445                  11,929                   9,762                  19,298                  52,576               2,02,880 

 Finance Leases               1,34,952               1,49,737                  35,087                  24,755                  44,777                  44,881                      238 

 Trade receivable                      780                      780                      780                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Security deposits Premises                        27                        27                         -                           -                           -                          27                         -   

 Sundry Deposits                          3                          3                         -                           -                            3                         -                           -   

 Retained Interest on Loan Assigned                       221                      221                        24                        22                        37                        77                        61 

 Advances to suppliers of goods and services                        12                        12                        12                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Loans and advances to employees                         17                        17                         -                           -                          17                         -                           -   

 Other Advances                  12,474                      957                      877                         -                           -                          80                         -   

              2,60,448 

Financial liabilities

 Non-convertible unsecured debentures                  20,395                  21,077                         -                    21,077                         -                           -                           -   

 Term Loans from Banks maturity               1,75,659               1,96,217                  57,058                  20,817                  49,225                  69,117                         -   

 ECB Borrowing from Bank                  20,190                  22,498                      493                      689                  11,003                  10,313                         -   

 Security deposits from lessees                   2,065                   2,438                         -                        304                      630                   1,504                         -   

 Cash Credits Facilities                   3,983                   3,983                   3,983                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Loans and advances from related party                      282                      282                      282                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Trade Payable                   4,728                   4,728                   4,728                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Provision for expenses                      493                      493                      493                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Lease liabilities (refer note 44)                      350                      388                        68                        64                      129                      127                         -   

 Other Payables to Employees                      462                      462                      462                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Payable in respect of loans assigned                      155                      155                      155                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Advance from customers                   3,559                   3,559                   3,559                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Commitment                  14,010                  14,010                  14,010                         -                           -                           -                           -   

Total               2,49,749 

ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial assets and liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted and
include estimated interest payments.

Contractual cash flows

for the year ended 31 March 2023
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ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

for the year ended 31 March 2023

iii. Liquidity risk (Continued)

March 31, 2022
INR actuals

Carrying amount Total
Less than 6 

months
6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years

More than 5 
years

Financial assets

 Loans 

 Cash and cash equivalents                   2,861                   2,861                   2,861                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Loan against Hypothecation of vehicle                   8,854                  11,722                   5,020                   2,609                   2,878                   1,215                         -   

 Loan against Property               1,22,156               2,74,913                  11,340                  10,898                  21,993                  61,797               1,68,884 

 Finance Leases                  73,331                  90,578                  23,458                  15,195                  25,339                  26,548                        38 

 Trade receivable                   1,151                   1,151                   1,151                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Security deposits Premises                        24                        24                         -                           -                           -                          24                         -   

 Sundry Deposits                          3                          3                         -                           -                            3                         -                           -   

 Retained Interest on Loan Assigned                       502                      503                        49                        45                        81                      251                        77 

 Advances to suppliers of goods and services                        12                        12                        12                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Loans and advances to employees                         14                        14                         -                           -                          14                         -                           -   

 Other Advances                   5,865                      494                      466                         -                           -                          29                         -   

              2,14,773 

Financial liabilities

 Non-convertible unsecured debentures                  20,403                  22,557                         -                     1,077                  21,480                         -                           -   

 Term Loans from Banks maturity               1,18,534               1,26,443                  42,436                  40,525                  10,763                  32,718                         -   

 ECB Borrowing from Bank                  21,134                  26,215                   1,452                      689                   1,379                  22,695                         -   

 Security deposits from lessees                   1,572                   2,072                      283                      418                      398                      973                         -   

 Cash Credits Facilities                   3,004                   3,004                   3,004                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Overdraft facilities                         (0)                         (0)                         (0)                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Loans and advances from related party                   1,217                   1,217                   1,217                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Trade Payable                   3,745                   3,745                   3,745                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Provision for expenses                      366                      366                      366                         -                           -                           -   

 Lease liabilities (refer note 44)                      409                      409                        50                        53                        93                      213                         -   

 Other Payables to Employees                      250                      250                      250                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Payable in respect of loans assigned                      355                      355                      355                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Advance from customers                   3,175                   3,175                   3,175                         -                           -                           -                           -   

 Commitment                  10,603                  10,603                  10,603                         -                           -                           -                           -   

Total               1,84,767 

The gross inflows/(outflows) disclosed in the above table represent the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to the financial liabilities and financial 
assets. 

Contractual cash flows



49 Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management (Continued)

iv. Market risk

for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices – will affect the
Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial
instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt.

Currency risk
The Company has its revenues and other transactions in its functional currency i.e. INR except immaterial expenditure in foreign currency.
Accordingly the Company has no material exposure to currency risk as on 31st March 2023.



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

50 Capital Management

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Borrowings                          2,25,992                            1,65,864 

Gross Debt                          2,25,992                            1,65,864 

Less - Cash and Cash Equivalents                             (5,031)                               (2,861)

Adjusted Net debt                          2,20,961                            1,63,003 

Total equity                             64,232                               63,228 

Adjusted Net debt to equity ratio                                 3.44                                   2.58 

31st March 2023 31st March 2022

20.54% 24.35%

0.62% 1.24%

21.16% 25.59%

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to (a) maximise shareholders value and provide benefit to the stakeholders and (b)
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Company monitors capital using a ratio of "adjusted net debt" to "adjusted equity". For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
liabilities, comprising interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Equity comprises all components of equity.

INR Lakhs

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

Regulatory capital

 i)  Tier I Capital (%)

 ii) Tier II Capital (%)

Total Capital

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of operations, capital expenditure and strategic investment plans. The
capital structure is monitored on the basis of net debt to equity and maturity profile of overall debt portfolio of the Company.

The Company is subject to the capital adequacy requirements of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Under RBI’s capital adequacy guidelines,
the Company is required to maintain a capital adequacy ratio consisting of Tier I and Tier II Capital. The total of Tier II Capital at any point
of time, shall not exceed 100 percent of Tier I Capital. The minimum capital ratio as prescribed by RBI guidelines and applicable to the
Company, consisting of Tier I and Tier II capital, shall not be less than 15 percent of its aggregate risk weighted assets on-balance sheet and
of risk adjusted value of off-balance sheet.

The Company has complied with all regulatory requirements related to capital and capital adequacy ratios as prescribed by RBI as per circular
number DOR(NBFC).CC.PD.NO.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020

Particulars
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51 Repayment schedule of borrowings :

Loan as on 31 March 2023 are repayable as stated blow

Interest Rate Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-5 years Total

Floating

Monthly 7.90% to 8.90% 7,614                                6,667                                4,111                                -                                   18,391                              

Quarterly 7.71% to 9.30% 15,214                              12,500                              11,250                              5,625                                44,589                              

Bullet Payment 5.90% to 9.09% 51,580                              23,000                              45,500                              -                                   1,20,080                           

Fixed

Monthly -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   

Quarterly -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   

Bullet Payment 6.35% to 7.60% 20,585                              10,000                              10,000                              -                                   40,585                              

Total 94,992                              52,167                              70,861                              5,625                                2,23,645                           

Loan as on 31 March 2022 are repayable as stated below

Interest Rate Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-5 years Total

Floating

Monthly 7.00% to 8.45% 12,083                              964                                   -                                   -                                   13,047                              

Quarterly 5.95% to 8.50% 10,657                              7,500                                5,000                                3,750                                26,907                              

Bullet Payment 4.35% to 9.10% 55,526                              -                                   23,000                              -                                   78,526                              

Fixed

Monthly -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   

Quarterly -                                   -                                   -                                   -                                   

Bullet Payment 6.35% to 7.60% 4,595                                20,000                              -                                   20,000                              44,595                              

Total 82,861                              28,464                              28,000                              23,750                              1,63,075                           
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
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52 Deferred tax

 Net balance
April 1, 2022 

 Recognised in 
profit or loss 

 Recognised
in OCI 

 Net  Deferred tax 
asset 

 Deferred tax 
liability 

Lease rentals and tax depreciation 4,577                                      (937) -                     3,639                                    3,639                         -   

Provision for non-performing assets//Expected Credit Losses 2,629                                    1,697 -                     4,326                                    4,326                         -   

Provision for leave encashment & gratuity 75                                              14 -                     89                                              89                         -   

Maintenance linked reserve 33                                              37 -                     70                                              70                         -   

Others 101                                             (2) -                     99                                              99                         -   

Ind AS Adjustments

Lease rental straight lining 1                                                  0 2                                                  2                         -   

Effective gain on loan transfer transactions (242)                                          (10) (252)                                            -                       (252)

Employee benefits Other Comprehensive Income profit & loss 5                                                19 (19)                     24                                              24                         -   

Discounting of security deposits paid for premises 8                                                12 21                                              21                         -   

Discounting of security deposits received from lessees 7                                                 -   7                                                  7                         -   

Initial direct cost salary expense 13                                               -   13                                              13                         -   

Salaries 8                                                 -   8                                                  8                         -   

Tax assets (Liabilities) 7,217                  830                     (19)                     8,047                  8,299                  (252)                    

Net tax assets 7,217                  830                     (19)                     8,047                  8,299                  (252)                    

 Net balance
April 1, 2021 

 Recognised in 
profit or loss 

 Recognised
in OCI 

 Net  Deferred tax 
asset 

 Deferred tax 
liability 

Lease rentals and tax depreciation 5,031                                      (455) -                     4,577                                    4,577                         -   

Provision for non-performing assets//Expected Credit Losses 1,762                                       866 -                     2,629                                    2,629                         -   

Provision for leave encashment & gratuity 57                                              18 -                     75                                              75                         -   

Maintenance linked reserve 24                                                9 -                     33                                              33                         -   

Others -                                          101 101                                          101                         -   

Ind AS Adjustments

Lease rental straight lining 1                                                  0 1                                                  1                         -   

Effective gain on loan transfer transactions (240)                                            (2) (242)                                            -                       (242)

Employee benefits Other Comprehensive Income profit & loss 1                                                  4 5                                                  5                         -   

Employee benefits Other Comprehensive Income                         (4) 4                         -                                             -                           -   

Discounting of security deposits paid for premises 4                                                  4 -                     8                                                  8                         -   

Discounting of security deposits received from lessees (3)                                              11 7                                                  7                         -   

Initial direct cost salary expense 13                                               -   13                                              13                         -   

Salaries 8                                                  0 8                                                  8                         -   

Tax assets (Liabilities) 6,658                  554                     4                         7,217                  7,459                  (242)                    

Net tax assets 6,658                  554                     4                         7,217                  7,459                  (242)                    

31-Mar-22

31-Mar-23

Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax asset
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53 Tax expense

(a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

INR INR

Current income tax                             1,640                             1,261 

Excess Provision for previous years                                (33)                           (1,081)

                            1,607                                180 

Deferred income tax liability / (asset), net

Increase in deferred tax assets                              (809)                              (541)

Increase in deferred tax liabilities due to Ind AS Adjustments                                (21)                                  (9)

Deferred tax expense                              (830)                              (550)

Tax expense for the year                                777                              (370)

(b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

Tax (expense) benefit Tax (expense) benefit

INR INR

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans                                  19                                    4 

                                 19                                    4 

(c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022

INR INR

Profit before tax                             1,857                             1,012 

Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 25.168%                                467                                255 

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable income:

Non Deductible expenses                                  26                                814 

Other Comprehensive Income                                (19)                                    4 

Other provision and deduction including u/s 36                                336                              (362)

(Excess) / Short provision of tax for earlier years                                   -                                    -   

Excess provision for earlier years                                (33)                           (1,081)

                               776                              (370)
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54 Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars 1 April 2022 Cash Flows 31 March 2023

Term loan 1,18,353                               57,016                            1,75,369                              

ECB Borrowing 20,938                                  (938)                               20,000                                 

Non Convertible Debenture 20,000                                  -                                 20,000                                 

Masala Bond -                                       -                                       

Loans and advances from related party 1,218                                    (935)                               282                                      

Lease Liability on principal component 410                                       (59)                                 351                                      

Lease liabilty Interest portion -                                       -                                 0                                          

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 780                                       95                                   875                                      

Increase in Cash Credit & overdraft facilities 3,004                                    4,396                              7,401                                   

Total 1,64,703                               59,575                            2,24,278                              

Particulars 1 April 2021 Cash Flows 31 March 2022

Term loan 1,15,968                               2,385                              1,18,353                              

Non Convertible Debenture 20,000                                  -                                 20,000                                 

ECB Borrowing 24,688                                  (3,750)                            20,938                                 

Masala Bond 10,000                                  (10,000)                          -                                       

Loans and advances from related party 1,003                                    215                                 1,218                                   

Lease Liability on principal component 156                                       254                                 410                                      

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 886                                       (106)                               780                                      

Increase in Cash Credit & overdraft facilities 245                                       2,759                              3,004                                   

Total 1,72,946                               (8,243)                            1,64,703                              
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55 Public disclosure on liquidity risk

1)

Sr. No. Number of Significant 
Counterparties 

Amount % of Total deposits % of Total Liabilities 

1 11                                            21,60,988 NA 91%

2)

3) Top 10 borrowings ( % of total borrowings)  -
Sr. No. Amount % of total borrowings

1 1,31,286                                             56%

2 52,246                                                22%

3 20,000                                                8%

4 20,395                                                9%

4)
Sr. No. Amount % of Total Liabilities 

1 1,83,532                                             78%

5) Stock Ratios: 
Sr. No. NA

1 NA

2 NA

3 NA

4 NA

5 NA

6 NA

7 NA

8 22%

9 17%

Note : 1) Total liability does not include net worth

6) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management 

The Company  has also set up ALM support group.

NCD

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibilities of management of liquidity risk.
The Company has a Risk Management Committee, which reports to the Board and is responsible for evaluating overall risks faced by
Company including liquidity risk
Asset Liability Committee of company consisting Directors is responsible for ensuring adherence to the risk tolerance limit and implementing
the liquidity risk management strategy of the Company

NCD ( Original Maturity<1 year ) to Total Liabilities

NCD ( Original Maturity<1 year ) to Total Assets

Other Short Term Liabilities  to  Total Public Funds

Other Short Term Liabilities  to  Total Assets

The company manages its liquidity risk based on the policy for liquidity risk management which incorporates the principles laid down by RBI
in the liquidity risk management framework for NBFC.

Particulars

Commercial Papers to  Total Public Funds

Commercial Papers to  Total Liabilities

Commercial Papers to  Total Assets

NCD ( Original Maturity<1 year ) to Total Public Funds

Public disclosure on liquidity risk based on audited financial statement as at 31st March 2023 pursuant to RBI notification RBI/2019-20/88
DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 04, 2019 on Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking
Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies

Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings).

Total liability does not include Equity

Top 20 large deposits (amount in ₹ Lakhs and % of total deposits) - Not applicable. The Company being a Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India does not accept public deposits

Bank Term Loan

Bank Working Capital

Particulars

ECB Borrowing

Other Short Term Liabilities  to  Total Liabilities

Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product 
Name of the instrument/product 

Bank Borrowing
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56

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

a)

b)

vi)

a)

b)

vii)

viii)

ix)

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender in the financial years ended March 31, 2023 and
March 31, 2022.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of
Layers) Rules, 2017 for the financial years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments unde the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for the
financial years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the intermediary shall for the financial years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 :

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate 
Benificiaries) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall for the financial years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 :

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency  for the financial years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

Other Statutory Information

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property
for the financial years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period for the financial years ended March
31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.
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57 Other Ratio

Particulars Denominator  31 March 2023  31 March 2022 % Variance Reason for Variance

a) Captial to risk weighted assets ratio (CRAR) Risk weighted assets 21.16% 25.59% -17.29% Due to increase in risk weighted 
asset

b)  Tier I CRAR Tier I Capital Risk weighted assets 20.54% 24.35% -15.62% Due to increase in risk weighted 
asset

c)  Tier II CRAR Tier II Capital Risk weighted assets 0.62% 1.24% -49.73% Due to increase in risk weighted 
d) Liquidity coverage ratio Total net cash outflows 35% 17% 105.59% Due to increase in outflow for 

finance lease disbursement.

Total risk weighted assets represents the weighted average of funded and non-funded items after applying the risk weights as assigned by the RBI.
Tier I capital means own funds as reduced by investment in shares of other NBFCs and in shares, debenture, bonds, outstanding loans and advances, hire 
purchase and lease finance made to and deposits with subsidiaries and companies in the same group exceeding, in aggregate,  10% of the total owned funds.
Tier II capital includes preference share capital, revaluation reserve, general provisions and loss reserves, hybrid debt capital instruments and subordinate debts to 
the extent the aggregate does not exceed Tier I capital.
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58

1 Exposure to real estate sector

Sl. No. Category
As at March 31st, 

2023
As at March 31st, 

2022

(i) Direct exposure

(a) 

Residential Mortgages –
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential 
property that is or will be occupied by the 
borrower or that is rented. Exposure would also 
include non-fund based (NFB) limits.

80,253                     89,134                     

(b) 

Commercial Real Estate #
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real 
estate (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose 
commercial premises, multifamily residential 
buildings, multi tenanted commercial premises, 
industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land 
acquisition, development and construction, 
etc.).Exposure would also include non-fund based 
(NFB) limits.

34,958                 39,352                 

(c) 

Investments in Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS) 
and other securitized exposures –
i. Residential
ii. Commercial Real Estate
ii) Indirect Exposure
Fund   based   and   non-fund-based   exposures   
on   National Housing Bank and Housing Finance 
Companies.

-                           -                           

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 1,15,211                  1,28,486                  

2  Exposure to capital market

Sl. No. Category
As at March 31st, 

2023
As at March 31st, 

2022
(i) Direct  investment in equity  shares,  convertible 

bonds,convertible debentures and units of equity 
oriented mutual  funds  the  corpus  of  which is 
not exclusively invested in corporate debt .

-                           -                           

(ii) 
Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or 
other securities or on clean basis to individuals for 
investment  in  shares  (including  IPOs  /  ESOPs), 
convertible  bonds,  convertible  debentures,  and 
units of equity oriented mutual funds .

-                           -                           

(iii) Advances for any other purposes where shares or 
convertible  bonds  or  convertible  debentures  or 
units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as 
primary security .

-                           -                           

(iv) Advances  for  any  other  purposes  to  the  extent 
secured  by  the  collateral  security  of  shares  or 
convertible  bonds  or  convertible  debentures  or 
units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the 
primary  security  other  than  shares  /  convertible 
bonds  /  convertible  debentures  /  units  of  equity 
oriented  mutual  funds  does  not  fully  cover  the 
advances .

-                           -                           

(v) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers 
and guarantees  issued on behalf of  stockbrokers 
and market makers.

-                           -                           

(vi) 
Loans   sanctioned   to   corporates   against   the 
security  of  shares  /  bonds  /  debentures  or  
other securities or on clean basis for meeting 
promoter’s contribution  to  the  equity  of  new  
companies  in anticipation of raising resources

-                           -                           

(vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity 
flows / issues

-                           -                           

(viii) Underwriting commitments taken up by the 
NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or 
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or 
units of equity oriented mutual funds

-                           -                           

(ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading -                           -                           

(x) All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds: -                           -                           

(i) Category I -                           -                           

(ii) Category II -                           -                           

(iii) Category III -                           -                           

Total Exposure to Capital Market -                           -                           

Disclosure of details as required in terms of circular DOR.CRE.REC.No.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated October 22,2021 on ‘Scale Based Regulation (SBR): A Revised Regulatory 
Framework’ and in terms of circular DOR.ACC.REC.No.20/21.04.018/2022-23 on disclosures in Financial Statements- Notes to Accounts for NBFCs
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58
Disclosure of details as required in terms of circular DOR.CRE.REC.No.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated October 22,2021 on ‘Scale Based Regulation (SBR): A Revised Regulatory 
Framework’ and in terms of circular DOR.ACC.REC.No.20/21.04.018/2022-23 on disclosures in Financial Statements- Notes to Accounts for NBFCs

3 Sectoral exposure

Total Exposure 
(includes on 

balance sheet and 
off-balance sheet 

exposure)

Gross NPAs

Percentage of Gross 
NPAs to total 

exposure in that 
sector

Total Exposure 
(includes on 

balance sheet and 
off-balance sheet 

exposure)

Gross NPAs

Percentage of Gross 
NPAs to total 

exposure in that 
sector

1. Agriculture and Allied Activities 513                          -                           0% 459                          -                           0%

2. Industry

    2.1 All engineering 2,283                       376                          16% 1,935                       13                            0%

    2.2 Automobile & auto ancillary 4,047                       23                            1% 1,502                       9                              1%

    2.3 Basic metal & metal product 869                          418                          48% -                           -                           0%

    2.4 Building materials 47                            -                           0% 41                            -                           0%

    2.5 Chemicals 822                          22                            3% 314                          10                            3%

    2.6 Construction 578                          -                           0% 518                          -                           0%

    2.7 Consumer/general goods 445                          -                           0% 82                            1                              1%

    2.8 Electrical & electronics 180                          6                              4% 121                          8                              0%

    2.9 Energy & power 3,470                       0                              0% 3,632                       0                              0%

    2.10 Engineering 951                          0                              0% 166                          -                           0%

    2.11 Fashion/garments & texiles 353                          0                              0% 168                          17                            10%

    2.12 FMCG 1,064                       74                            7% 939                          -                           0%

    2.13 Food processing 172                          -                           0% 103                          -                           0%

    2.14 Healthcare & pharma 2,546                       548                          22% 1,633                       588                          36%

    2.15 Industrial machinery & components 7,459                       2                              0% 2,330                       3                              0%

    2.16 Infrastructure 333                          168                          50% 266                          168                          63%

    2.17 IT/ITES 695                          0                              0% 369                          1                              0%

    2.18 Metal 8,451                       10                            0% 5,143                       115                          2%

    2.19 Mining & quarrying (Incl. coal) 206                          3                              2% 214                          4                              0%

    2.20 Oil & gas 339                          1                              0% 228                          -                           0%

    2.21 Others, if any 6,683                       1,017                       15% 6,038                       258                          4%

    2.23 Paper & paper products 569                          79                            14% 551                          -                           0%

    2.24 Printing & packaging 759                          14                            2% 1,194                       3                              0%

    2.25 Research & consultancy 47                            -                           0% 45                            -                           0%

    2.26 Rubber & plastic 647                          -                           0% 434                          1                              0%

    2.27 Textiles 1,644                       437                          27% 1,588                       159                          0%

    2.28 Wood & wood products 183                          -                           0% -                           -                           0%

    2.29 Manufacturing -                           -                           0% 2,766                       264                          10%

    2.30 Medium enterprise -                           -                           0% 6                              -                           0%

    2.31 Real Estate / Constructions -                           -                           0% 340                          -                           0%

    2.32 Large enterprise -                           -                           0% 38                            -                           0%

    2.33 Wood & wood products -                           -                           0% 189                          -                           0%

Total Industry 45,842                     3,200                       32,891                     1,624                       

As at March 31st, 2023 As at March 31st, 2022

Sectors



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

58
Disclosure of details as required in terms of circular DOR.CRE.REC.No.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated October 22,2021 on ‘Scale Based Regulation (SBR): A Revised Regulatory 
Framework’ and in terms of circular DOR.ACC.REC.No.20/21.04.018/2022-23 on disclosures in Financial Statements- Notes to Accounts for NBFCs

Total Exposure 
(includes on 

balance sheet and 
off-balance sheet 

exposure)

Gross NPAs

Percentage of Gross 
NPAs to total 

exposure in that 
sector

Total Exposure 
(includes on 

balance sheet and 
off-balance sheet 

exposure)

Gross NPAs

Percentage of Gross 
NPAs to total 

exposure in that 
sector

3. Services

    3.1 Accountancy/taxation/consulting 8,490                       29                            0% 4,273                       56                            1%

    3.2 Agriculture and allied activities 6                              0                              7% 34                            -                           0%

    3.3 Automobile & auto ancillary 2,096                       333                          16% 856                          417                          49%

    3.4 Aviation 17                            -                           0% -                           -                           0%

    3.5 BFSI 16,977                     61                            0% 9,444                       134                          1%

    3.6 BPO 4,420                       1                              0% 2,264                       47                            2%

    3.7 Chemicals 336                          0                              0% 283                          4                              0%

    3.8 Commercial real estate 7,247                       588                          8% 6,657                       66                            0%

    3.9 Computer software 815                          46                            6% 831                          46                            0%

    3.10 Consumer/general goods 911                          -                           0% 479                          0                              0%

    3.11 E-commerce 528                          6                              1% 452                          6                              1%

    3.12 Education & training 1,309                       -                           0% 264                          2                              1%

    3.13 Electrical & electronics 1                              -                           0% 13                            -                           0%

    3.14 Energy & power 311                          1                              0% 155                          5                              0%

    3.15 Engineering 1,034                       21                            2% 913                          34                            4%

    3.16 Fashion/garments & texiles 45                            -                           0% 83                            -                           0%

    3.17 Healthcare & pharma 3,288                       26                            1% 2,096                       162                          8%

    3.18 Hotels & restaurants 666                          1                              0% 471                          36                            8%

    3.19 Industrial machinery & components 597                          103                          17% 340                          103                          30%

    3.20 Infrastructure 3,180                       609                          19% 2,073                       628                          30%

    3.21 Insurance 898                          1                              0% 825                          0                              0%

    3.22 IT/ITES 40,637                     122                          0% 19,819                     404                          2%

    3.23 Logistics/courier 161                          8                              5% 359                          9                              0%

    3.24 Media & entertainment 1,771                       26                            1% -                           -                           0%

    3.25 NBFCs 1,273                       -                           0% -                           -                           0%

    3.26 Others 0                              -                           0% -                           -                           0%

    3.27 Others, if any 42,692                     5,678                       13% 38,813                     2,615                       0%

    3.28 Printing & packaging 4                              -                           0% 7                              -                           0%

    3.29 Professional services 2,169                       685                          32% 1,910                       399                          0%

    3.30 Real estate 728                          181                          25% 646                          207                          32%

    3.31 Research & consultancy 5,616                       6                              0% 3,364                       7                              0%

    3.32 Salaried/individual 0                              -                           0% -                           -                           0%

    3.33 Staffing/manpower services 232                          0                              0% 184                          1                              0%

    3.34 Telecom & communications 2,511                       23                            1% 1,585                       38                            2%

    3.35 Tourism, hotel and restaurants 5,603                       1,277                       23% 5,142                       1,081                       21%

    3.36 Transport operators 8,232                       3,420                       42% 11,260                     3,432                       30%

    3.37 Vehicle/auto lease 0                              -                           0% 0                              -                           0%

    3.38 Services -                           -                           0% 11,892                     982                          8%

    3.39 SFO -                           -                           0% 79                            18                            23%

    3.40 Small enterprise -                           -                           0% 2,187                       391                          18%

    3.41 Small transpoter -                           -                           0% 226                          54                            24%

    3.42 Financial services -                           -                           0% 37                            20                            54%

    3.43 Firness & wellness -                           -                           0% 0                              0                              100%

    3.44 FTU -                           -                           0% 12                            -                           0%

    3.45 Large enterprise -                           -                           0% 131                          189                          145%

    3.46 Manufacturing -                           -                           0% 29                            -                           0%

    3.47 Media & entertainment -                           -                           0% 1,089                       -                           0%

    3.50 Medium enterprise -                           -                           0% 173                          64                            37%

    3.51 MFO -                           -                           0% 0                              -                           0%

    3.52 Micro enterprise -                           -                           0% 17                            11                            65%

    3.53 SCV -                           -                           0% 4                              -                           0%

Total Services 1,64,800                  13,252                     1,31,769                  11,669                     

As at March 31st, 2023 As at March 31st, 2022

Sectors
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Disclosure of details as required in terms of circular DOR.CRE.REC.No.60/03.10.001/2021-22 dated October 22,2021 on ‘Scale Based Regulation (SBR): A Revised Regulatory 
Framework’ and in terms of circular DOR.ACC.REC.No.20/21.04.018/2022-23 on disclosures in Financial Statements- Notes to Accounts for NBFCs

Total Exposure 
(includes on 

balance sheet and 
off-balance sheet 

exposure)

Gross NPAs

Percentage of Gross 
NPAs to total 

exposure in that 
sector

Total Exposure 
(includes on 

balance sheet and 
off-balance sheet 

exposure)

Gross NPAs

Percentage of Gross 
NPAs to total 

exposure in that 
sector

4. Personal Loans

   4.1 Mortgage loan 1,681                       73                            4% 485                          -                           0%

   4.2 Salaried/individual 1,212                       110                          9% 554                          85                            15%

   4.3 Vehicle/Auto loans 5                              -                           0% 24                            13                            54%

   4.4 Large enterprise -                           -                           0% 3                              3                              100%

   4.5 Others -                           -                           0% 43                            4                              9%

   4.6 Small enterprise -                           -                           0% 26                            -                           0%

Total Personal Loans 2,898                       183                          1,135                       105                          

5. Others, If any

(Please Specify)

   5.1 Automobile & auto ancillary 2,106                       24                            1% 656                          56                            9%

   5.2 BFSI 8                              -                           0% -                           -                           0%

   5.3 Consumer/general goods 164                          0                              0% 3                              3                              0%

   5.4 E-commerce 2,526                       35                            1% 1,609                       113                          0%

   5.5 Fashion/garments & texiles 521                          403                          77% 387                          387                          0%

   5.6 Others, if any 38,864                     11,099                     29% 36,312                     6,040                       17%

   5.7 Automotive -                           -                           0% 75                            20                            26%

   5.8 Captive -                           -                           0% 1                              -                           0%

   5.9 Services -                           -                           0% 21                            1                              5%

   5.10 Trading -                           -                           0% 8,750                       781                          9%

Total Others, If any 44,191                     11,561                     47,814                     7,400                       

ii. In the disclosures as above, if within a sector, exposure to a specific sub-sector/industry is more than 10 per cent of Tier I Capital of a NBFC, the same shall be disclosed 
separately within that sector. Further, within a sector, if exposure to specific sub-sector/industry is less than 10 per cent of Tier I Capital, such exposures shall be clubbed and 
disclosed as “Others” within that sector.

i. The disclosures as above shall be based on the sector-wise and industry-wise bank credit (SIBC) return submitted by scheduled commercial banks to the Reserve Bank and 
published by Reserve Bank as ‘Sectoral Deployment of Bank Credit’.

As at March 31st, 2023 As at March 31st, 2022

Sectors
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131 34
1 1 -               
2 131 34
3 132 33

3.1 72 18
4 -               1

5.* -               -               
5.1 -               -               
5.2 -               -               
5.3 -               -               

6.* -               -               

2) Top five grounds2 of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers

2 The list of grounds of complaints given below are indicative only.

Ground 12 ROI Issue
Ground 13 Others

Ground 9 Recovery Agents/Direct Sales Agents
Ground 10 Staff behavior
Ground 11 Non-observance of Fair Practices Code

Ground 6 Payment Update & Confirmation
Ground 7 Delay in sharing other statements and documents (Beyond TAT )
Ground 8 Mis-selling

Ground 3 Delay in Refund
Ground 4 Levy of charges without prior notice/excessive charges/foreclosure charges
Ground 5 Insurance related : Cancellation & Refund 

Ground # Grounds of complaints received
Ground 1 Delay in sharing foreclosure statement ( Beyond TAT )
Ground 2 Delay in NOC issuance/ property paper  (Beyond TAT)

Ground 13 - 5 0% - -
Ground 12 - 0 0% - -
Ground 10 - 0 0% - -
Ground 7 - 1 0% - 1
Ground 6 - 0 0% - -
Ground 5 - 0 0% - -
Ground 4 1 18 0% - 7
Ground 3 - 1 0% - -
Ground 2 - 4 0% - -

Current Year
Ground 1 - 5 0% - -

Ground 13 - 13 80% - -
Ground 12 - 6 60% - -
Ground 10 - 4 40% - -
Ground 7 - 12 110% - -
Ground 6 - 7 70% - -
Ground 5 - 2 20% - -
Ground 4 1 16 -20% - -
Ground 3 - 7 60% - -
Ground 2 - 17 130% - 1

Current Year
Ground 1 - 47 420% - -

1 2 3 4 5 6

Grounds of complaints, (i.e. 
complaints relating to)

Number of complaints 
pending at the beginning of 

the year

Number of 
complaints 

received during 
the year

% increase/ decrease in 
the number of 

complaints received over 
the previous year

Number of complaints 
pending at the end of the 

year

Number of complaints 
pending beyond 30 days

Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman against the NBFC
Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those appealed)

Note: Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021 (Previously The Ombudsman Scheme 
for Non-Banking Financial Companies, 2018) and covered within the ambit of the Scheme. * It shall only be applicable to NBFCS which are included under The 
Reserve Bank - Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021

Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year
Number of complaints received during the year
Number of complaints disposed during the year
Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC
Number of complaints pending at the end of the year
Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman

In terms of the circular DOR.ACC.REC.No.20/21.04.018/2022-23 dated April 19, 2022 and circular DOR.CRE.REC. No.60/03.10.001/2021-22 
dated October 22, 2021 on ‘Scale Based Regulation (SBR):

Sr. 
no

Particular Current Year Previous Year

Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers

Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman
Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman
Of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman
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59 In terms of the circular DOR.ACC.REC.No.20/21.04.018/2022-23 dated April 19, 2022 and circular DOR.CRE.REC. No.60/03.10.001/2021-22 
dated October 22, 2021 on ‘Scale Based Regulation (SBR):

A) Corporate governance

1) Composition of the Board

Held Attended
Salary and 

other 
compensation

Sitting Fee Commission

1 Mr. Yoshiaki Matsuoka 07-07-2020
Non-executive 
director and 
chairman

08141800 5 5 1                     -                    -                    -   Nil

2 Mr. Sandeep Gambhir 08-01-2013
Managing 
director -
executive

00083116 5 5 2                     -                    -                    -   10*

3 Mr. Takashi Yamasaki 29-07-2021
Non-executive 
director

09238975 5 5 1                     -                    -                    -   Nil

4 Mr. Takehiro Onishi 31-03-2021
Non-executive 
director

09019630 5 5 1                     -                    -                    -   Nil

5 Mr. Nagesh Dubey 09-03-2015
Non-executive 
independent 
director

06967617 5 5 1                     -                     4                  -   Nil

6 Mr. Abhay Kakkar 09-03-2015
Non-executive 
independent 
director

06659327 5 4 2                     -                     4                  -   Nil

7 Mr. Ryohei Suzuki 19-09-2018
Non-executive 
director

0'8218888 5 3 1                     -                    -                    -   Nil

8 Mr. Shingen Matsuo 09-08-2022
Non-executive 
additional 
director

09685164 5 3 1                     -                    -                    -   Nil

9 Ms. Gouri Sawant 28-03-2017
Non-executive 
director

07748113 5 4 Nil                     -                    -                    -   Nil

*10 Shares jointly held with ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited (OAIS)

1 Mr. Shin Hamada 09-08-2022
2 Mr. Shingen Matsuo 09-08-2022

1 Mr. Shin Hamada 30-06-2021
2 Mr. Takashi Nakayama 29-07-2021
3 Mr. Takashi Yamasaki 29-07-2021
4 Mr. Rajeev Lochan Seth 09-11-2021

*Cessation due to expiry of his tenure of five (5) years as an Independent Director.

Details of any relationship amongst the directors inter-se shall be disclosed – Not Applicable

2) Committees of the Board and their composition
i Names of the committees of the Board.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

Independent director Cessation*

IT Strategy Committee
IT Steering Committee

Audit committee
Nomination and Remuneration Committee  
Treasury and Asset Liability Management committee 
Executive committee  
Risk Management committee
Corporate Social Responsibility committee 

Non-executive director Resignation
Non-executive additional director Appointment

Where an independent director resigns before expiry of her/ his term, the reasons for  resignation as given by her/him shall be disclosed – Not Applicable.

Sr. 
No

Committee Name

No. of other 
Directorships

Remuneration

No. of shares 
held in and 
convertible 
instruments 
held in the 

NBFC

Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous financial year.

Sr. 
No

Name of Director
Capacity (i.e., Executive/ Non-Executive/ Chairman/ Promoter nominee/ 

Independent)

Nature of change (resignation, 
appointment)

Effective date

2022-23

2021-22
Non-executive director Appointment
Non-executive director Resignation
Non-executive director Appointment

Sr. 
No

Name of Director
Director 

since

Capacity (i.e. 
Executive/ 

Non-
Executive/ 
Chairman/ 
Promoter 
nominee/ 

Independent)

DIN

Number of Board 
Meetings

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Paragraph C of Schedule V - Annual Report) as amended from time to 
time, specifies disclosures to be made in the section on the corporate governance of the Annual Report. With respect to the corporate governance report, non-listed NBFCs should also 
endeavor to make full disclosure in accordance with the requirement of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. Non-listed NBFCs at the minimum should disclose following under the 
corporate governance section of the annual report.
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59 In terms of the circular DOR.ACC.REC.No.20/21.04.018/2022-23 dated April 19, 2022 and circular DOR.CRE.REC. No.60/03.10.001/2021-22 
dated October 22, 2021 on ‘Scale Based Regulation (SBR):

ii Following are the details of the Committee and its summarized terms of reference. – Refer Annexure 1 for the summarized terms of reference

Held Attended

1 NA NA Nil

2 2 2
10*

2 2

7 7

1 1

2 2

2 2

3 2 2
Nil

2 2

7 7

1 1

2 2

2 2

2 2

4 4 4

2 2

2 2

7 7

2 2

5 4 4

2 2

6 4 4
Nil

2 2

1 1

2 2

2 2

7 NA NA Nil
8 NA NA Nil
9 NA NA Nil

*10 Shares held in the Company jointly with ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Limited (OAIS)

3) General Body Meetings
Give details of the date, place and special resolutions passed at the General Body Meetings.

1 16th – Annual General Meeting Date :-  July 22, 2022 at 11:30 am Nil

Place:-  Audio-Video Conferencing (The deemed venue of 
the Meeting was Registered office of the Company located at 
Mumbai

Ms. Gouri Sawant Not Applicable Non-executive director

Sr. 
No

Type of Meeting (Annual/ Extra-
Ordinary)

Date and Place Special resolutions passed

Mr. Shingen Matsuo Not Applicable Non-executive additional director

Executive Committee - 20-
07-2021

Mr. Takashi Yamasaki Executive Committee – 09-
05-2022

Non-executive director

Risk Management 
Committee - 09-05-2022

Treasury and Asset 
Liability Management 

Committee – 09-05-2022

Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee – 

09-05-2022

IT Strategy Committee  – 
09-05-2022

Mr. Ryohei Suzuki Not Applicable Non-executive director

Mr. Nagesh Dubey Audit Committee –  09-03-
2015

Non-executive independent director

Mr. Abhay Kakkar Audit Committee –  09-03-
2015

Non-executive independent director

Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee - 

09-03-2015
Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee – 
09-03-2015

IT Strategy Committee – 
24-05-2018

IT Steering Committee  24-
05-2018

Nil

Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee – 

09-03-2015

Nil

Number of Meetings of the 
Committee

No. of shares 
held in the 

NBFC

Mr. Yoshiaki Matsuoka Not Applicable Non-executive director and chairman
Mr. Sandeep Gambhir Executive Committee – 22-

03-2013 
Managing director -executive

Risk Management 
Committee – 08-01-2013

Treasury and Asset 
Liability Management 

Committee – 08-01-2013

Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee – 

09-03-2015

IT Strategy Committee  24-
05-2018

IT Steering Committee  24-
05-2018

IT Steering Committee  – 
09-05-2022

Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee - 

09-05-2022

Mr. Takehiro Onishi Audit Committee –  20-07-
2021

Non-executive director

Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee - 

20-07-2021
Risk Management 

Committee - 20-07-2021

Treasury and Asset 
Liability Management 

Committee - 20-07-2021

Sr. 
No

Name of Director

Member of Committee 
since

Capacity (i.e., Executive/ Non-Executive/ Chairman/ 
Promoter nominee/ Independent)
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59 In terms of the circular DOR.ACC.REC.No.20/21.04.018/2022-23 dated April 19, 2022 and circular DOR.CRE.REC. No.60/03.10.001/2021-22 
dated October 22, 2021 on ‘Scale Based Regulation (SBR):

4) Details of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013

5) Details of penalties and strictures

There are no penalties or stricture imposed on it by the Reserve Bank or any other statutory authority.

6) Disclosure on modified opinion

There is no modified opinion given by statutory auditor.

7) Item of income and expenditure of exceptional nature.

There is no  income and expenditure of exceptional nature.

B) Breach of covenant - Nil

C) Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning

Gross NPAs identified by RBI/NHB exceeds 5 per cent of the reported Gross NPAs for the reference period.

Sr 
No
1
2

3
4
5

6
7
8

9
10

11
12

* March 31, 2022 is the close of the reference period in respect of which divergences were assessed

Note :- (a) Divergence in provisioning (refer point no. 9 of above table)
(b) Provisions required for likely losses in off – balance sheet items

Loans to Directors, Senior Officers and relatives of Directors

Disclosure of details as required in terms of circular DOR.CRE.REC.No.25/03.10.001/2022-23 dated April 19, 2022 on ‘Loans and Advances – Regulatory Restrictions - 
NBFCs"

Particulars

Directors and their relatives

Entities associated with directors and their relatives
Senior Officers and their relatives 

 As at and for the year ended March 
31st, 2023 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 As at and for the year ended 
March 31st, 2022 

 - 

 - 

 - 

Adjusted (notional) Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 2022 
after considering the divergence in provisioning

                                1,386 

Divergence in provisioning (8-7)                                      -   
Reported Profit before tax and impairment loss on financial instruments for the year 
ended March 31, 2022

                                2,227 

Reported Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 2022                                 1,386 

Divergence in Net NPAs (5-4)                                      -   
Provisions for NPAs as on March 31, 2022 as reported by the NBFC                                 5,619 
Provisions for NPAs as on March 31, 2022 as assessed by Reserve Bank of India/ 
NHB

                                5,619 

Divergence in Gross NPAs (2-1)                                      -   
Net NPAs as on March 31, 2022 as reported by the NBFC                               15,176 
Net NPAs as on March 31, 2022 as assessed by Reserve Bank of India/ NHB                               15,176 

Particulars  Amount 

Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2022* as reported by the NBFC                               20,796 
Gross NPAs as on March 31, 2022 as assessed by the Reserve Bank of India/ NHB                               20,796 

There is no non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013
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Annexure 1 

 
Summarized terms of reference 

 
(I) Audit Committee: 

 
(1) Financial Reporting: 

 
(i) To oversee the financial reporting process, accounting controls and disclosure of 

financial information to ensure that financial information report is sufficient and 
credible;  

 
(ii) To understand how management develops interim financial information and the 

nature and extent of internal and external auditor involvement in the process. 
 

(iii) To review or set up Accounting Policy Related Party Transaction (RPT) Policy of 
the Company on a periodic basis and recommend to Board for approval (subject to 
prior approval of ORIX Corp). 

 
(iv) Approve, in terms of the RPT Policy, any Related Party Transactions i.e. 

transactions of the Company of material nature with Related Parties as defined under 
section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 that may have potential conflict with the 
interests of Company at large including modification in such transactions and seek 
approval of the Board on these transactions; 

 
(v) To review audited / unaudited / limited review of the annual and/or semi-annual 

financial statements before submission to the Board focusing primarily on: 
 

(a) the application of significant accounting policies and any changes to them; 
 

(b) the methods used to account for significant or unusual transactions; 
 

(c) Compliance with accounting standards;  
 

(d) Significant adjustments arising out of audit; 
 

(e) Qualifications in draft audit report; 
 

(f) Areas involving significant judgement, estimation or uncertainty and the 
provisions in the financial statements; 

 
(g) Compliance with legal and regulatory and financial reporting requirements; 

and 
 

(h) To review Auditors’ Report on annual / semi-annual financial statement 
before submission to the Board; 

 
(vi) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 
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(vii) To note valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever necessary; 

 
(viii) Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters; 

 
(ix) To receive regular reports from CFO in charge of the accounting department on the 

status of the implementation and operation of internal controls over financial 
reporting, and also receive prompt reports on errors and fraud affecting the 
reliability of financial reporting that have occurred in the company and its 
subsidiaries 

 
(2) Auditor (External Auditor) : 

 
The Committee shall: 

 
(i) consider and make recommendations to the board, to be put to shareholders for 

approval at the Annual General Meeting, in relation to the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the Company's Statutory Auditor (External Auditor) 
(subject to prior approval of ORIX Corp); 

 
(ii) review and monitor the External Auditor’s independence and performance and 

effectiveness of audit process 
 

(iii) if an External Auditor resigns, investigate the issues leading to this and decide 
whether any action is required; 

 
(iv) oversee the relationship with the external auditor. In this context the Committee 

shall: 
 

(a) subject to prior approval of ORIX Corp, approve their remuneration, 
including both fees for audit and non-audit services, and ensure that the level 
of fees is appropriate to enable an effective and high-quality audit to be 
conducted;   

 
(b) approve their terms of engagement, including any engagement letter issued at the 

start of each audit. 
 

(c) Holding discussions with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences 
regarding nature and scope of audit as well as post audit discussions on any 
areas of concern; 

 
(v) satisfy itself that there are no relationships between the auditor and the company 

(other than in the ordinary course of business) which could adversely affect the 
auditor's independence and objectivity; 

 
(vi) evaluate the risks to the quality and effectiveness of the financial reporting process 

in the light of the external auditor's and CFO’s communications with the 
Committee; 
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(vii) meet regularly with the external auditor (including once at the planning stage 
before the audit and once after the audit at the reporting stage) and, at least once a 
year, meet with the external auditor without management being present, to discuss 
the auditor's remit and any issues arising from the audit 

 
(viii) discuss with the external auditor the factors that could affect audit quality and 

review and approve the annual audit plan, ensuring it is consistent with the scope of 
the audit engagement, having regard to the seniority, expertise and experience of the 
audit team; 

 
(ix) review the findings of the audit with the external auditor. This shall include but not 

be limited to, the following: 
 

(a) a discussion of any major issues which arose during the audit; 
 

(b) key accounting and audit judgements; 
 

(c) the auditor's view of their interactions with senior management; and 
 

(d) levels of errors identified during the audit; 
 

(x) review the management letter and management's response to the auditor's findings 
and recommendations. 

 
(xi) review the effectiveness of the audit process, including an assessment of the quality 

of the audit, the handling of key judgements by the auditor, and the auditor's 
response to questions from the Committee. 

 
(xii) Discusses problems and reservations arising from the interim and/or the final audits 

(full or limited review) and any matters the statutory auditor may wish to discuss so 
as to ascertain quality and veracity of Company’s accounts. 

 
(3) Internal Control : 

 
(1) keep under review the company's internal financial controls systems that identify, 

assess, manage and monitor  financial risks, and other internal control and risk 
management systems including information technology security and control; and 

 
(2) Understand the scope of internal and external auditors’ review of internal control 

over financial reporting and obtain reports from significant findings and 
recommendation, together with management’s responses. 

 
(3) review and approve the statements to be included in the annual report concerning  

internal control, risk management 
 

(4) Review the report of auditor on internal control over financial reporting and 
recommend to the Board of Director for its approval  

 
 
 



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated) 
 

2

 
(4) Internal Audit : 

 
The Committee shall: 

 
(1) Review and approve the Internal Audit Charter annually. 

 
(2) Ensure that the internal audit activity, purpose, authority, and responsibility are 

consistent with the mandatory guidance of The IIA’s International Professional 
Practices Framework 

 
(3) Recommend to the Board of Directors for the appointment or termination /  removal 

/  dismissal of the Head of Internal Audit (subject to prior approval of ORIX 
Corp); 

 
(4) review and approve the role and mandate of internal audit, monitor and review the 

effectiveness of its work subject to the condition that it must comply with ORIX’s 
Rules for internal audit; 

 
(5) review and approve the annual risk based internal audit plan and scope to ensure 

it is aligned to the key risks of the business, and receive regular reports on work 
carried out; 

 
(6) ensure internal audit has unrestricted scope, the necessary resources and access to 

information as well as to management, staff to enable it to fulfil its mandate; 
 

(7) ensure there is open communication between different functions and that the internal 
audit function evaluates the effectiveness of these functions as part of its internal audit 
plan, and ensure that the internal audit function is equipped to perform in accordance 
with appropriate professional standards for internal auditors; 

 
(8) meet regularly with the Internal Audit Head without management being present, 

to:  
 

(a) discuss any issues arising from the audit and also effectiveness of the 
function; or 

 
(b) Inquire of the Internal Audit Head whether any evidence of fraud has been 

identified during internal audit engagements and evaluate what additional 
actions, if any, has been taken. 

 
(9) carry out an annual assessment of the effectiveness of the internal audit function; 

and as part of this assessment: 
 

(a) determine whether it is satisfied that the quality, experience and expertise of 
internal audit is appropriate for the business; and 

 
(b) review the actions taken by management to implement the recommendations 

of internal audit and to support the effective working of the internal audit 
function; 
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(10) monitor and assess the role and effectiveness of the internal audit function in the 
overall context of the company's risk management system and the work of 
compliance, finance and the external auditor;  and 

 
(11) With regard to, Quality Assurance and Improvement Program (QA&IP): 

 
(a) Ensure that Internal Audit activity has QA&IP; 
(b) Review the results of the independent external quality assurance. 
(c) Review and monitor the implementation of the internal audit activity’s action 

plans to address any recommendations;. and  
(d) that the results of these periodic assessments are presented to the Audit 

Committee 
 

(12) consider whether an independent, third party review of Information Technology 
(IT) Audit are appropriate. 

 
(13) Ensure that the internal audit activity has an external quality assurance review every 

five years. 
 

(14) Advise the Board of Directors about any recommendations for the continuous 
improvement of the internal audit activity. 

 
(5) Tax Auditors : 

 
The committee shall: 

 
(1) consider and make recommendations to the board, in relation to the appointment, 

re-appointment and removal of the company's Tax Auditor; 
 

(2) approve remuneration of Tax Auditor 
 

(3) review the findings of the audit with the Tax Auditor. This shall include but not 
be limited to, the following: 

 
(a) discussion of any major issues which arose during the audit; and 

   
(b) review Tax Audit Report 

 
(6) Compliance : 

 
(1) Review and approve Compliance Charter annually and also approve formulation, 

abolition or amendment of rules on compliance related matters or compliance related 
policies (subject to prior approval of ORIX Corp / ORIX Corp’s Global General 
Counsel’s Office)   

(2) Review the effectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with laws and 
regulations and the results of findings / investigation of compliance department and 
follow-up (including disciplinary action) of any instances of noncompliance.  
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(3) Review the findings / observation of any inspection / examinations carried out by 
regulatory agencies or any notice received from regulatory authorities concerning 
violation of any law.  

(4) Review the process for communicating the code of conduct to company personnel, 
and for monitoring compliance therewith.  

(5) Obtain regular updates from compliance head regarding compliance matters.  

(6) Review regular reports from the Compliance Officer and keep under review the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the company’s compliance function 

(7) Consider whether the controls established to prevent fraud and illegal acts are 
adequate so as to ensure all major cases of fraud/illegal acts are reported to Audit 
Committee 

(7) Organizational Governance: 
 

To obtain reasonable assurance with respect to the organization’s governance process, the 
Audit Committee shall review and provide advice on the governance process established 
and maintained within the organization and the procedures in place to ensure that they are 
operating as intended. 

 
(8) Risk Management: 

 
To obtain reasonable assurance with respect to the organization’s risk management 
practices, the Audit Committee shall annually review the organization’s risk profile 

 
(9) Whistleblowing and Fraud: 

 
The Committee shall: 

 
(1) review the company's procedures for detecting fraud; 

 
(2) review the company's systems and controls for the prevention of Bribery Anti-

Corruption (ABAC) and receive reports on non-compliance; 
 

(3) To review or take a note Internal / External Whistle Blower reports under Whistle 
Blower Policy and / or Vigil Mechanism in a prompt manner directed or 
investigated by ORIX India. 

 
(4) To review the number and content of enquires and whistle-blowing cases 

periodically 
 

(5) Institute and oversee special investigations as needed. 
 

(10) Litigation Review: 
 

(1) To review report of Managing Director on litigation against or by the Company 
involving debt or claim upto JPY 100 Mn; 
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(2) To review and recommend to the Board of Directors for actions with regard to 

litigation against or by the Company involving debt or claim over JPY 100 Mn 
(subject to prior approval of ORIX Corp)  

Note: 

Progress and Final Report about Important Legal Dispute must be approved by 
ORIX Corp. Important legal disputes refers to the following: 

(i) The legal dispute is for JPY100 Mn and more, regardless OAIS’s/OLFS’s 
position as plaintiff or defendant. 

 

(ii) The legal dispute could have significant impact on OAIS’s / OLFS’s profile for 
many years, even if it is for less than JPY100 Mn i.e. The legal dispute must be 
reported to ORIX Corp if it could have a significant impact on the Company. 

 
(11) Other Responsibilities : 

 
(1) To review and update this Charter annually. 

 
(2) Perform other activities related to this charter as requested by the governing body. 

 
(3) The audit committee shall report to the Board of Directors annually, summarizing 

the Audit Committee’s activities and recommendations. The report may be 
delivered during an Audit Committee meeting attended by the Board or during a 
regularly scheduled meeting of the board. The report should include summary of 
the work the audit committee performed to fully discharge its responsibilities 
during the preceding year. 

 
(4) To receive regular reports from Person in charge of corporate departments and 

business segments on the status of business operations at their company and its 
subsidiaries 

 
(II) Nomination and Remuneration Committee: The key responsibilities of the Committee are: 
 

(1) Reviewing the current Board composition, its governance framework and determine 
future requirements and making recommendations to the Board for approval. 

 
(2) Examining the qualification, knowledge, skill sets, positive attributes and experience of 

each Director and their effectiveness to the Board on a yearly basis. 
 
(3) Scrutinizing nominations for Independent/Non-Executive/Executive Directors with 

reference to their qualifications and experience and provide its recommendation to the 
Board for appointment/removal/filling of vacancies. 

 
(4) To recommend to the Board of Directors about remuneration of Directors including 

Managing Director.  
 
(5) To lay down criteria in relation to appointment and removal of Directors and KMP. 
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(6) To identify the persons who are qualified to become Directors and KMP and 

recommendation to the Board for their appointment and/or removal.# 
 

#Directors and Chief Financial Officer (KMP), who signs of Annual Financial statement 
requires ORIX Corporation’s prior approval. 

 
(7) To identify the persons who are qualified to become Senior Accounting Officer (SAO) 

[who signs of sworn statement over Annual Financial Information] for his/her 
appointment and/or removal.* 

 
*To be pre-approved by ORIX Corporation. 

 
(8) To ensure that no conflict of interest exists for appointment of SMP and KMP at the time 

of their appointment and until end of their respective term of association with the 
Company. 

 
(9) To carry out evaluation of the performance of the Board of the Company, Committees of 

the Board and individual Directors of the Company.  
 
(10) To carry out evaluation of KMP and SMP and approve increase in their remuneration and 

also to approve their elevation to next level depending on their performance. 
 
(11) To lay down criteria for payment of incentives to KMP and SMP and approve payment 

of incentives to them. 
 
(12) To note the incentives and commission schemes for employees other than SMPs and 

KMPs approved by the Managing Director. 
 
(13) To approve for Deferral of Variable Pay and Clawback, as deemed fit, for KMP and SMP. 
 
(14) Formulate the Nomination and Remuneration Policy and recommend to the Board of 

Directors for approval. 
 
(15) Ensure fit and proper criteria of Directors. 
 
(16) To review and update Nomination and Remuneration Committee Charter annually. 

 
(III) Treasury and Asset Liability Management Committee:  
 

(1) Setting of / preparing funding policy. 
 
(2) Pricing of products for both deposits and advances. 
 
(3) To approve decisions related to product pricing for advances, fixing of desired maturity 

profile and mix of the incremental assets and liabilities. 
 
(4) Collecting information about the prevailing interest rates offered by other peer NBFC for 

the similar services/products. 
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(5) Reviewing the results and progress in implementation of the decisions made in the 

previous meeting. 
 
(6) To articulate the current interest rate view of the Company and base its decisions for 

future business strategy on this view.  
 
(7) To develop a view on future direction of interest rate movements and decide on funding 

mixes between fixed v/s. floating rate funds, money market vs. capital market funding, 
domestic vs. foreign currency funding, etc. 

 
(8) Establishment of relations with bankers / financial institutions / companies for borrowing 

transactions (new or renewal). 
 

(9) To approve new, rollover of or variation to borrowing facility including debt security 
issuance by way of bonds / Debentures (secured/unsecured) and / or Commercial Papers, 
including the documentation for such borrowing facilities as empowered by shareholders 
under section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as delegated by the Board of 
Directors. 
(a) New applications of borrowing or credit guarantee facilities, and /or applications 

exceeding the set need to be pre-approved by ORIX Corp. 
(b) *Debt security Issuance including bonds/Debentures and/or CPs need to be pre-

approved by ORIX Corp.  
 

(10) To raise money by way of Inter Corporate Deposit or  any other resources as may be 
necessary either from Domestic or International Market. To be pre-approved by ORIX 
Corp. 

 
(11) To approve purchase and / or sale and/or or securitization or assignment of receivables 

arising out of lease rentals and / or loan / hire purchase instalments whether with or 
without underlying assets. To be pre-approved by ORIX Corp. 
 

(12) To report on funding transactions and activities (borrowings, commitment lines, 
guarantee amounts, derivative transactions, ALM related items and covenant compliance 
matters). 

 
(13) To understand business requirements and devising appropriate pricing strategies and 

proposing measures for maintaining relevant Net Interest Margins (NIM). 
 

(14) To ensure liquidity for the organization by devising prudent liquidity management 
strategies 
 

(15) To manage the balance sheet based on internal policies and applicable regulatory 
requirements with respect to capital requirements, etc. 
 

(16) To review reports on liquidity, market risk and capital management. 
 

(17) To ensure suitable mix of different forms of funding i.e. Bank Loans, Commercial Paper, 
Non-Convertible Debentures, etc. 
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(18) To manage interest rate risk for the Company. 

 
(19) Approvals required for management of currency risks. 

 
(20) Approvals required for any off-balance sheet/derivative transactions for managing 

pricing risks faced by the Company. 
 

(21) To review the collateral position of the Company. 
 

(22) Allotment of securities as defined under Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956: 
 
(i) To approve allocation / allotment of shares, debentures and other securities not 

exceeding the amount of issue approved by the Board of Directors of the 
Company from time to time.  

 
(ii) To approve allotment of securities from time to time. 

 
(iii) To affix or authorize affixation of Common Seal of the Company on the security 

certificates of the company; and 
 

(iv) To do all such acts, things or deeds as may be necessary or incidental to the 
exercise of the above powers. 

 
(23) To review and update Treasury and Asset Liability Management Committee Charter 

annually. 
 
 

(IV) Executive Committee: The key responsibilities of the Committee are: 
 
(1) Credit (Approval of Credit facilities to the Lease Customers /Borrowers of the 

Company including Government Companies: 
 

(1) Approval of Credit Proposals (above threshold value) of Financial Lease Business; 
Equipment Lease Business; Commercial Vehicle Loan Business; and Term Loan 
to Body Corporates as per the limits prescribed in Annexure 1 to 4, respectively, 
which are part of Executive Committee charter. 

 
(2) Setting Residual Value and Maintenance Budget for Leased Vehicle: 

 
(1) Setting up of Residual Value Policy. 

 
(2) Setting up / alteration of Residual Value of Vehicles and Maintenance budget of 

Vehicles (Per KM Maintenance Cost) for leased vehicles. 
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(3) Delegate powers of the Committee to the Executives of the Company with regard 

to: 
 

(a) Increase in Residual Value as below: 
 
(i) Business Heads may be authorised to increase RV of a vehicle by 5% 

over existing RV Grid. 
 

(ii) Managing Director may be authorised to increase RV of vehicle by 8% 
over existing RV Grid. 

 
(iii) Any increase in RV of any vehicle > 8% over existing RV Grid to be 

approved by any two Members of the Committee. 
 

(b) Decrease in Per KM Maintenance Cost of the Vehicles, as setup and approved 
by the Committee referred in point no (2) above, depending on the prevailing 
market conditions and to suit offering of competitive quotes and to make 
transaction process more efficient as below:    

 
(i) Slab 1 – may be approved by Branch Head. 
(ii) Slab 2 - may be approved by Business Head 
(iii) Slab 3 - may be approved by Managing Director. 
(iv) Slab 4 - may be approved by the Committee. 

 
Note: The Business Head should monitor and report the transactions 
approved, based on the above Slabs, in the next Committee meeting. 

 
(3) Capital Expenditure for Business Operations: 

 
(1) Acquisition and Disposal of Fixed Assets (for single purpose excluding operating 

assets and Computer Hardware and Software CAPEX) over JPY 20 Mn and up to 
JPY 100 Mn subject to prior approval of ORIX Corp. 

 
(4) General Administration: 

 
(1) To note waiver of income/reversals approved by Director or Managing Director. 

 
(2) To note non-performing Assets (NPA) occurrence (Client or Clients group) of 

receivables as approved by the Managing Director up to INR 6 Mn. 
 

(3) To approve non-performing Assets (NPA) occurrence (Client or Clients group) 
receivables over INR 6 Mn and reporting the same to ORIX Corporation post 
approval. 

 
(4) Rescheduling of non-performing receivables (Client or Client’s group): 

  
(a) Total receivables up to INR 6.0 Mn; and 

 
(b) Total receivables over INR 6.0 Mn subject to prior approval of ORIX Corp. 
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(5) Recommend to the Board for approval of Write off: 

 
(a) Total receivables up to INR 3.1 Mn (Client or Client’s group); 

 
(b) Total receivables Over INR 3.1 Mn and up to INR 7.8 Mn (Client or Client’s 

group) subject to prior approval of ORIX Corp (HQ); and 
 

(c) Total receivables over INR 7.8 Mn (Client or Client’s group) subject to prior 
approval of ORIX Corp (ICC). 

 
(6) To consider and approve opening of New Bank Accounts (Current Account / Cash 

Credit Account / Overdraft Account) and also approve change in various Authorised 
Signatories and their respective empowerment for signing cheques / various 
instruments for and on behalf of the Company. 

 
(7) To note Principal and Agency Agreement approved by MD. 

 
(8) To approve general expenditure (for single purpose) over INR 10 Mn. 

 
(9) To consider and approve closure of Bank Accounts. 

 
(10) Lease and/or rental (excluding operating assets and Computer Hardware and 

Software OPEX) expenses (including real estate for Company’s use) where annual 
rental is over JPY 10 Mn subject to prior approval of ORIX Corp. 

 
(11) Disposal of Fixed Assets (for single purpose excluding operating assets) over JPY 

20 Mn and up to JPY 100 Mn subject to prior approval of ORIX Corp. 
 
(5) Other functions: 
 

(1) Perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance 
of its duties and as are delegated to it by the Board. 

 
(2) To review and update Executive Committee Charter annually. 

 
(V) Risk Management Committee: The key responsibilities of the Committee are: 

 
(1) Risk planning. 
 
(2) Risk assessment & monitoring – Economy Review, Industry Review, Portfolio Review, 

Rating. 
 
(3) Risk systems (MIS and IT system integration). 
 
(4) Risk reporting – Keeping the Board informed at regular intervals of credit, market and 

operational Risk Profile of the Company. 
 
(5) To decide and delegate powers of Executive Committee of Board (EXCO) [only Credit 

related matters amongst the individual in credit department] with regard to person and 
amount.  
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(6) To approve Policy on outsourcing and carrying out any amendments, from time to time. 
 
(7) Laying down appropriate approval authority structure for outsourcing of activities 

depending on risks and materiality. 
 
(8) Deciding on business activities of a material nature to be outsourced and approving such 

arrangements. 
 
(9) Review of central record of all material outsourcing of Financial Services maintained by 

the Company. 
 
(10) To lay down internal rules, policies, processes and regulations with regard to Credit 

authorisations and delegate it to the executives of the Company. 
 
(11) To review and update Risk Management Committee Charter annually. 

 
(VI) CSR Committee: The key responsibilities of the Committee are: 
 

(1) To formulate & update a CSR Policy and seek recommendation of the Board on the CSR 
activities to be undertaken by the Company.  

 
(2) To suggest areas of intervention & approve projects for CSR activities.  
 
(3) Put monitoring mechanisms in place to track the progress of each project.  
 
(4) To approve CSR expenditure in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 including the 

Rules and Schedules framed thereunder and the CSR Policy of the Company referred to 
in clause (1).  

 
(5) To approve Annual Action Plan for the CSR activities of the Company in accordance 

with Companies Act, 2013 including the Rules and Schedules framed thereunder and the 
CSR Policy of the Company referred to in clause (1). 

 
(6) To review and update Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Charter annually. 
 

(VII) IT Strategy Committee:  
 

(1) To work in partnership with other Board committees and Senior Management to provide 
input to them. 

 
(2) To carry out review and amend the IT strategies in line with the corporate strategies, 

Board Policy reviews, cyber security arrangements and any other matter related to IT 
Governance. Its deliberations may be placed before the Board. 

 
(3) Approving IT strategy and policy documents and ensuring that the management has put 

an effective strategic planning process in place. 
 

(4) Ascertaining that management has implemented processes and practices that ensure that 
the IT delivers value to the business. 
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(5) Ensuring IT investments represent a balance of risks and benefits and that budgets are 

acceptable. 
 

(6) Monitoring the method that management uses to determine the IT resources needed to 
achieve strategic goals and provide high-level direction for sourcing and use of IT 
resources. 

 
(7) Ensuring proper balance of IT investments for sustaining NBFC’s growth and becoming 

aware about exposure towards IT risks and controls. 
 

(8) To institute an effective governance mechanism and risk management process for all IT 
outsourced operations. 

 
(9) In respect of IT outsourced operations, if any shall include: 

 
(i) Instituting an appropriate governance mechanism for outsourced processes, 

comprising of risk based policies and procedures, to effectively identify, measure, 
monitor and control risks associated with outsourcing in an end to end manner. 

 
(ii) Defining approval authorities for outsourcing depending on nature of risks and 

materiality of outsourcing. 

  
(iii) Developing sound and responsive outsourcing risk management policies and 

procedures commensurate with the nature, scope, and complexity of outsourcing 
arrangements. 

 

(iv) Undertaking a periodic review of outsourcing strategies and all existing material 
outsourcing arrangements. 

  

(v) Evaluating the risks and materiality of all prospective outsourcing based on the 
framework developed by the Board. 

  

(vi) Periodically reviewing the effectiveness of policies and procedures.  

 

(vii) Communicating significant risks in outsourcing to the NBFC’s Board on a periodic 
basis.  

 

(viii) Ensuring an independent review and audit in accordance with approved policies 
and procedures. 

 

(ix) Ensuring that contingency plans have been developed and tested adequately. 
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(x) NBFC should ensure that their business continuity preparedness is not adversely 
compromised on account of outsourcing. NBFCs are expected to adopt sound 
business continuity management practices as issued by RBI and seek proactive 
assurance that the outsourced service provider maintains readiness and 
preparedness for business continuity on an ongoing basis. 

 
(10) To review and update IT-Strategy Committee Charter annually. 

 
(VIII) IT Steering Committee: 

 
(1) Operating at an executive level and focusing on: 

 

(a) Priority setting,  

(b) Resource Allocation and 

(c) Project Tracking. 

 

(2) To provide oversight and monitoring of the progress of the project, including deliverables 
to be realized at each phase of the project and milestones to be reached according to the 
project timetable. 

 

(3) To review and update IT Steering Committee Charter annually. 
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Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

Particulars
Liabilities side :

Amount Amount Amount Amount
outstanding overdue outstanding overdue

(1) Loans and advances availed by the nonbanking financial
company inclusive of financial interest accrued thereon but not paid :

(a) Debentures : Secured -                       -                    -                       -                        
                       : Unsecured 20,395                 -                    20,403                  -                        
(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits*)
(b) Deferred Credits -                       -                    -                       -                        
(c) Term Loans 2,03,250              -                    1,42,672               -                        
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing -                       -                    -                       -                        
(e) Commercial Paper -                       -                    -                       -                        
(f) Other Loans (specify nature) Cash Credit & Subordinate Debt pursuant to scheme of 
reorganisation -                       -                    -                       -                        
-Cash Credit & short term loans -                       -                    -                       -                        
-Subordinate Debt -                       -                    -                       -                        

* Please see note 1 below

Particulars  31 March 2023  31 March 2022
Amount 

outstanding
Amount 

outstanding
Assets side :

(2) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables
[other than those included in (3) below] :

(a) Secured -                       -                        
(b) Unsecured -                       -                        

(3) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets
counting towards AFC activities

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :

(a) Financial lease (Net Stock of Finance Lease  + Sundry Debtors) (Net of Provision) 1,34,952               73,331                  
(b) Operating lease (incl Sundry Debtors) 775                       1,146                    

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors :

(a) Assets on hire -                       -                        
(b) Repossessed Assets -                       -                        

(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities

(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed -                       -                        
(b) Loans other than (a) above including debtors (Net of Provision) 1,06,931               1,31,010               

Disclosures required under Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company 
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016  (Continued)

 31 March 2023  31 March 2022
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58.1) Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company (Continued)

Particulars  31 March 2023  31 March 2022
Amount 

outstanding
Amount 

outstanding
(4) Break-up of Investments :

Current Investments :

1. Quoted :
(i) Shares : (a) Equity -                       -                        
                 (b) Preference -                       -                        
(ii) Debentures and Bonds -                       -                        
(iii) Units of mutual funds -                       -                        
(iv) Government Securities -                       -                        
(v) Others (please specify) -                       -                        

2. Unquoted :
(i) Shares : (a) Equity -                       -                        
                 (b) Preference -                       -                        
(ii) Debentures and Bonds -                       -                        
(iii) Units of mutual funds -                       -                        
(iv) Government Securities -                       -                        
(v) Others (please specify) -                       -                        

Long Term investments :
1. Quoted :

(i) Shares : (a) Equity -                       -                        
                 (b) Preference -                       -                        
(ii) Debentures and Bonds -                       -                        
(iii) Units of mutual funds -                       -                        
(iv) Government Securities -                       -                        
(v) Others (please specify) -                       -                        

2. Unquoted :
(i) Shares : (a) Equity -                       -                        
                 (b) Preference -                       -                        
(ii) Debentures and Bonds -                       -                        
(iii) Units of mutual funds -                       -                        
(iv) Government Securities -                       -                        
(v) Others (please specify -                       -                        

Particulars  31 March 2023  31 March 2022
Amount 

outstanding
Amount 

outstanding
(5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:

Please see Note 2 below
Category 

1. Related Parties **
   (a) Subsidiaries -                       -                        
   (b) Companies in the same group -                       -                        
   (c) Other related parties -                       -                        
2. Other than related parties 2,42,658               2,05,486               
Total 2,42,658               2,05,486               
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58.2) Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company (Continued)

(6)
in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):
Please see note 3 below

Category

Market Value / 
Break up or fair 

value or NAV

Book Value 
(Net of 

Provisions)

Market Value / 
Break up or fair 

value or NAV

Book Value (Net 
of Provisions)

1. Related Parties **
   (a) Subsidiaries -                       -                    -                       -                        
   (b) Companies in the same group -                       -                    -                       -                        
   (c) Other related parties -                       -                    -                       -                        
2. Other than related parties -                       -                    -                       -                        
Total -                       -                    -                       -                        

** As per Accounting Standard of ICAI (Please see note 3)

Particulars   31 March 2023  31 March 2022
Amount Amount

(7)        Other information

Gross Non-Performing Assets
 (a) Related parties -                       -                        
 (b) Other than related parties 28,195                  20,796                  

Net Non-Performing Assets
 (a) Related parties -                       -                        
 (b) Other than related parties 14,275                  15,176                  

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

As per our report of even date attached

For Dass Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited
Firm's registration No.  000112N

Raaja Jindal Sandeep Gambhir Takashi Yamasaki
Partner Director                         Director                         
Membership No: 504111 (DIN - 00083116) (DIN - 09238975)

Vivek Wadhera Meeta Sanghvi
CFO Company Secretary

New Delhi
30 June 2023

(ii)

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

(i)
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Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term)

 31 March 2023  31 March 2022
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